PLANNING BOARD MEETING AGENDA
AUGUST 14, 2025 - 7:00 P.M.

CALL TO ORDER
ROLL CALL
PLEDGE OF ALEGIANCE TO THE FLAG

APPROVAL OF MINUTES
1. Consider Approval of Meeting Minutes July 17, 2025

CITIZEN COMMENT ON AGENDA ITEMS
COMMUNICATIONS - None

UNFINISHED BUSINESS - None

NEW BUSINESS
1. Consider Site Plan Review 106 West State Street
2. Consider Review of PUD Option
3. Consider Discussion regarding Social District(s)
4. Consider Discussion of General Business License (GBL)

CITIZEN COMMENT
PLANNING COMMISSION MEMBER COMMENTS

ADJOURNMENT

HOME OF THE ANNUAL BLUEBERRY FESTIVAL

139 S. SAGINAW ST. MONTROSE, MI 48457 / PHONE (810) 639-6168



MONTROSE PLANNING BOARD MEETING MINUTES
July 14, 2025

CALL TO ORDER: Vice Chairman Anthony Brown called the Planning Board meeting to
order at 6:42 p.m. The meeting was held at the Montrose City Office at 139 S. Saginaw Street,

Montrose, MI

ROLL CALL: Present Members were, Anthony Brown, Todd Baryo, Paul Wixson and Warren
Edwards. Also present were Council Representative Lori Machuk and Interim City Manager Joe
Karlichek. Absent: Chairman Ray Foust, and Members Ashley Putnam and Connor Pangle.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG: Vice Chairman Anthony Brown led the Pledge
of the Allegiance.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES
1. APRIL 23, 2025, PLANNING BOARD MEETING MINUTES:

e MOTION by Edwards SECOND Baryo to approve the meeting minutes. All Ayes. Motion
Passed.

CITIZEN COMMENT ON AGENDA ITEMS: Mr. Timothy Mazur, city of Montrose Building
Inspector introduced himself to the board.

COMMUNICATIONS: NONE

PUBLIC HEARING: NONE

UNFINISHED BUSINESS: None

NEW BUSINESS:
It is recommended that the Planning Commission move to forward the draft Housing Study to City
Council and request the Council to authorize the distribution of the study for review in accordance
with State Law.
e Motion by Mr. Baryo (above new business read as motion). SECOND Mr. Edwards. All
Ayes. Motion Carried.

EXTENDED CITIZEN COMMENTS: NONE

EXTENDED MEMBER COMMENTS: Vice Chairman Anthony Brown asked the following
two items be added to next agenda: 1) General Business License (GBL). Interim City Manager
advised the PC the GBL is in abeyance for an additional 90 days by city council and that city
administration is investigating the GBL to determine its validity, oversight and recommend
changes, if any, to the current ordinance. 2) Interim City Manager to provide the PC options for
social districts for the PC to consider within the DDA District.

ADJOURNMENT
e MOTION by Brown SECOND by Wixson to adjourn the meeting. All Ayes. Motion

Carried.

Vice Chairman Anthony Brown adjourned the meeting at 7:25 p.m.
Prepared by City Manager, Joe Karlichek

Page 1 of 1



CITY OF MONTROSE
MEMORANDUM

Date: August 5, 2025
To: Chairman Foust and Planning Commission Members

From: Joe Karlichek, Interim City Manage@

Subject: Consider Site Plan Review Plans from Architect 106 West State Street

Background: The City Council approved, via a Resolution, at their July 22, 2025, meeting the Application for
Obsolete Property Rehabilitation Exemption Certificate for 106 West State Street. (Resolution & Application
JSfor OPRA Exemption Certificate provided with this memorandum).

Sec. 12.1 — 12.5 of the City of Montrose Ordinance is provided as a guide to review of the proposed project at
106 West State Street.

One item the PC should be aware of was communication with the past administration relative to Zoning and
proposed first floor apartment. The “interpretation” is inaccurate. I have attached the email regarding that
communication for your edification. I discussed this circumstance with PC Chairman Mr. Foust, and the
consensus 1s, there is a need for a Variance. The proposed plan indicates a handicap accessible first floor
apartment on the north side of the building, not a bed and breakfast.

I also consulted with Adam Young of Wade Trim (City Planner) on this project, and the most appropriate
handling is for the Planning Board to review the proposed plan for 106 West Stat Street.

Recommendation: It is recommended the Planning Commission review the Site Plans provided by
architect Cody Newman and consider approval of the plan provided.



Michigan Department of Traasury
3674 (Rev 12-29)

Application for Obsolete Property Rehabilitation Exemption Certificate

issusd under authenty of Public Act 148 of 2000, as amendad

This application should be filed afler the district is eslabiished. This project will nol recerve lax benefits unlil approved by the State Tax Commission.
Applications received alter October 31 may nel be acted ugon in the current year This application is subject to audit by (he State Tax Commission.
INSTRUCTIONS: File the completed applicalion and the required atlachments with the clerk of the local government unit. (The State Tax Commission
requires bwo copies of the Application and altachments. The original is retained by the clerk.) See Stale Tax Commission Bulletin 9 of 2000 for more
infarmation about lhe Obsolete Properly Rehabilitation Exemplion. The following must be provided to the lecal government unif as altachments fo this
application: {a) General description of the obsclete facility (year buill, original use, most recent use, number of storles, square footage), (b) General
description of the proposed use of the rehabilitated faciity, (¢) Descriptien of the general nalure and axtent of the rahabilitation (0 be undertaken, {d)

A descriptive list of the fixed building equipment that will be a part of the rehabiitated faciily, (e A time schedule for undertaking and completing the
rehabfiitation of the facility, (f} A statement of the economic advartages expected from the exemption, A stalement from: the assessor of the focal unit of
government, describing the required cbsclescence has been mel for this building, is required with each application. Rehabilitation may commence after
establishment of district.

Applicant (Company) Mame [apgiicant must be the QVWNER of the facility)

Ramby, LLC

[+ y Mading Acdress (Mumber and Street, P.0. Bax. City, State, ZIP Code)
611 W Court Street, Flint, Michigan 48503

Lecation of obsolete faciity (Number and Sireet, City State, ZIP Cods)
106 W. State Streetl, Montrose, Michigan 48457

City, Township, Vilage (indicate which) County
Montrose, Montrose Township Genessee
Dale of Commencemant of Rehabiltation (mmiddfyyyy) | Planned date of Comgletion of Rehabilitation (mm/ddfyyyy} | School District where facility is localed (nclude
August 2025 February 2026 schadtcod®) Montrose 25260
Estimated Cost of Rehabilitation Number of years exemplion requested
$2,169,612.00 12
Atlach iega description of sbsolels property on separale sheel
Expacted Project Ot (Check all that apply}
E Increase commercial activity D Relain employment Et] Revitalize urban arsas
Increase number of residents
E} Creale employment D Prevent a loss of empleyment E in the community m which the

facilily is situated

Indicate the number of jobs to be relaines or created a3 a result of rehabifitating the faclity, ncluding expecled consiruchan employment. 12

PE Each year, the State Treasurer may aperova 23 aoditional reductions cf half the school cperating and state aducation laxes for a periad not to exceed six ysars.
Check the box at [eft if you wish lo be considered for this exclusion.

APPLICANT CERTIFICATION

The undersigned, aulhorized officer of the company making this appiication cerlifies (hat, to the best of his/her knowledge, no informatien confained
harein or in the attachments hereto is false in any way and that all of the information is truly descriptive of the property for which this application is be-
ing submitted. Further, the undersigned (s aware that, if any statemenl or informalion provided is untrue, the exemption provided by Public Act 148 of
2000 may be in jecpardy.

The applicant certifies that this application refates to a rehabilitation program that, when completed, constitutes a rehabilitated facility, as
defined by Public Act 146 of 2000, as amended, and that the rehabilitation of the facility would not be undertaken without the applicant’s
receipt of the exemption certificate.

it is further certified that the undersigned s familiar with the provisions of Public Act 148 of 200C, as amended, of the Michigan Compiled Laws; and lo
the best of hisiher knowledge and belief, (sjhe has complied or will be able to comply with all of the requirements thereof which are prerequisite to the
approval of the application by lhe local unit of government and the issuance of an Cbsalete Property Rebabilitation Exemption Cerfificate by the Stale

Tax Commission,

Name of Company Officer (No authorized agents) Teiephone Number Fax Number

Dean Yeotis, Fred Abdou, and Frank Preketes (810) 767-6100 (810) 767-6415
Mailing Address E-marl Address

611 W. Court Street, Flint, Michigan 48503 deanyeotis@yahoo.com, flabdou@yahoo.com
[“Signatura of Company Officer (no authorized agenis) Tille

LOCAL GOVERNMENT UNIT CLERK CERTIFICATION
Thﬁpﬁmﬁaml’ma 2 and 4 on page 2. Part 3 is to be completed by the Assessor.

Thwsina V1. Buol Grfledt™ 5735 a5~
COMMISSION USE

FOR STATE TAX

Date Received LUCI Code

Application Number




1§74, Page 2

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACTICN

This sectior is 1o be compieted oy the clerk of ihe local governing uni! befare submitiing the application fo the Siate Tax Cemmission. Include a cogy
of the resolubon which approves the application and Instruction lems {a) through () on page !. and 3 separate stalemenl of cbsalescance from the
23525397 of record with the Stale Assessor 5 Board, All sactians mLst b2 completed in arder lo process.

PART 1: ACTION TAKEN

Acmncaeeoé/l/zz ZDZD

E E:empmn Appraved for

] penied

52 ; Years, ending December 30,

aza z (et o excead 12 years) !
|

Date

shed
e 21 2019

[Schaal Code

25260

LUCH Code

LS~ 2eksS |

PART 2: mwm;mmmmtummmwmm
A slatement that the applicaticn & for obsalete propenty as defned in

}

A statement 1nal the Incal unit is a Qualified Local Governmantal Unit.

A statement dnat the Obsolete Property Rehabilitation District was legally
astablisned including the date established and the date of heaning as
provided by sechion 3 of Publiz Act 146 of 2000,

A stafement indicating whather (he taxable valus of ine property proposed
io be exempi plus the aggregate taxable value of proparty alraady exemnt
under Public Act 145 of 2000 and under Public Act 192 of 1974 (IFT's}
exceads 5% of the lolal taxable value of the unil

A slatemeni of the factors, criteda and objectives. if any. tecessary for
sxiending the exemption, wihen the cerlificate is for less than 12 years.

A statement that a public hearing was heid on the apglication 3s provided by
section 4{2) of Public Ac! 148 of 2000 including the date of the hearing.

A statement that the apphcant is nol delinguent in any laxes related to the
facility

it it exceeds 5% (see above), lwmmmﬂmm
the affect of substantially impeding the operation of the Qualified Local
wm::wnmmﬁnmmdmm
laxing unit,

4 slatement that al! of the items described under “Instructions” (a) through (1)
of the Applicaticn for Obsolete Property Rehabilitation Exemption Certificate
mmmwm Qualified Local Governmental Uni by the

iawsmmm 14€ of 2000 to estabiish such a district

seciion 2(h) of Public Act 148 of 200C.

A stalement thal the commencement of the rehabilitation of the facility
aid not occur pefore the estasiishmant of the Dbsolete Property
Renabditation: Cistricl.

A statemen! that tha application retales lo a rehabilitation program !hal
when compieted constiutes a rehabilitated faclily within the meaning of
Public Act 148 of 2000 and thal is sduated wilhir an Obsalete Property
Rehabilitation Dislrict estaslished in 2 Qualified Local Gavernmental Uni:

A statemnen| (hat completion of the rehabilitated faciity is calculated lo,
ang will at the time of issuance of the certificale, have the reasanable
likelihooa to, increase commercial activity. create employment retain
employment, preven! a loss of employment, revitalize urban areas, or
increase the number of residerits in the community in which the facility is
situated. The statement should indicate which of these the rehabifitation
is fikely to resull in.

A siaterneni thal the renabiflation includes improvements aggregating
10% ar more of *he truz cash value of the property al commencement of
the renabilitation as proviged by section 2(i) of Public Act 146 of 2000

A statement of the period of ime authorized by the Qualkified Local
Governmental Unit for complelicr of the renabilitation.

mnmm mmwmdnmw as provided in Public Act 148 of 2000, as amended, for he tax year im-
mediately preceding lhe effective date of the centificate (December 31 of the year approved by the STC)

7ol

Builaing Taxable Vaive Buiding State Equahzed Value
s 49797 $ 52,300
- o722 7025 | W2eg

A

mwmmmuumumm no nformation contaned herein or in the atiachments hareio 13 false in any way. Further, the
aware that f any information pragided is unue. the axemption provided by Pubiic Act of 2000 may be in j@opardy

P2 M. g,

R0 L4 - b8 exh 3

T ——

A Stan o3 ST,
mm-& v (A

Fax Numbar
————

o

ook @ cdycFuentse . us

LReXt, A |-

o M. luol.

-

/2835

For faster service, email compieted application and attachments to PTE@michigan.gov. An additional submissicn opticn 1s to mail
the completed appiication and attachmaents to Michigan Department of Treasury, State Tax Commission, PO Bax 30471. Lansing. Mi

48909. If you have any questions, call 517-335-7491,



CITY OF MONTROSE, MICHIGAN
RESOLUTION No.

RESOLUTION TO APPROVE OBSOLETE PROPERTY REHABILITATION
EXEMPTION CERTIFICATE APPLICATION FOR RAMBY LLC

At a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Montrose, Genesee County,

Michigan, held on the 22nd day of Juiy, 2025, at 7:00 pm, :
"}"(J L)L{UY ,j, }h".l-\.._))ff/\ '{';hnw i’[rl%!f “ ‘:'{

PRESENT: (50t (iund d, Zyfan Neotop Tndd aw—-‘LuLC‘ imw*"d’”‘u&

ABSENT: __ (Yl Lsca —ML e U':;:: )
‘ ! 2‘({{_;“1;1“ !;‘"f{

The following ﬁyreamblc aﬁd resolution was offered by { [ W 4N & (’11 L’,}"' téﬂ,-:;
seconded by My, 02 o T2 (" J

WHEREAS, pursuant to Public Act 146 of 2000, as amended, the City of Montrose is a
Qualified Local Governmental Unit eligible to establish one or more Obsolete Property
Rehabilitation Districts; and

WHERE AS, the City of Montrose legally established the Obsolete Property Rehabilitation
District including 106 W. State Street on November 21, 2019, after a public hearing held on the

same date; and

WHEREAS, the taxable value of the property proposed to be exempt plus the aggregate
taxable value of property already exempt under Public Act 146 of 2000 and under Public Act 198

of 1974 does not exceed 5% of the total taxable value of the City of Montrose; and

WHEREAS, Ramby LLC (“Applicant”), a Michigan limited liability company whose
registered office address is 611 Court Street, Flint, Michigan 48503-5000, owns real property
commonly known as 106 W. State Street, Montrose, Michigan (“Property”), which is located

within the Obsolete Property Rehabilitation District; and

WHEREAS, the Applicant filed with the City Clerk an application for an obsolete property
rehabilitation exemption certificate (“Application”) with respect to the Property, which includes
the information required under Section 4 of Public Act 146 of 2000; and

WHEREAS, the City held a duly noticed public hearing as provided by section 4(2) of
Public Act 146 of 2000 on July 22, 2025; and

WHEREAS, the Applicant, Ramby LLC, is not delinquent in any taxes related to the
facility; and

WHEREAS, the Application is for obsolete property as defined in section 2(h) of Public
Act 146 of 2000, as confirmed by the City Assessor’s statement of obsolescence dated October 9,

2019; and

WHEREAS, the Applicant, Ramby LLC, has provided answers to all required questions
under the application instructions to the City of Montrose; and

Page 1 of 3



Reseolutien No.

WHEREAS, the City of Montrose requires that rehabilitation of the facility shall be
completed by _ L1 € FOXn; and

WHEREAS, the commencement of the rehabilitation of the facility did not occur before
the establishment of the Obsolete Property Rehabilitation District; and

WHEREAS, the Application relates to a rehabilitation program that when completed
constitutes a rehabilitated facility within the meaning of Public Act 146 of 2000 and that is situated
within an Obsolete Property Rehabilitation District established in the City of Montrose eligible

under Public Act 146 of 2000 to establish such a district; and

WHEREAS, completion of the rehabilitated facility is calculated to, and will at the time
of issuance of the certificate, have the reasonable likelihood to increase commercial activity, create
employment, and increase the number of residents in the community in which the facility is

situated; and

WHEREAS, the rehabilitation includes improvements aggregating 10% or more of the
true cash value of the property at commencement of the rehabilitation as provided by section 2(1)

of Public Act 146 of 2000.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Montrose,
Michigan, as follows:

1. Approval of Exemption Certificate: The City Council hereby grants an Obsolete Property
Rehabilitation Exemption Certificate for the real property, excluding land, located in the
Obsolete Property Rehabilitation District at 106 W. State Street, Montrose, Michigan, for
a period of 12 years, beginning December 31, 2025, and ending December 30, 2037,
pursuant to the provisions of Public Act 146 of 2000, as amended.

2. -Completion Da)te The Applicant must complete rehabilitation of the facility on or before
NL. 204 -

3. Compliance with Statutory Requirements: The City Council finds that the Application
satisfies all requirements under Public Act 146 of 2000, including the provision of required
documentation, confirmation of the Property’s obsolescence, and demonstration of

economic benefits to the community.

4. Notification to State Tax Commission: The City Clerk is directed to forward a copy of
this resolution and the Application to the State Tax Commission for final approval, as

requlred by Section 5 of Public Act 146 of 2000. L.{'T)é, oA
vEas: P n(,«(c U.(_@LL\) (Lencl. | Mau Lkl(, Pieo=Tem
oy '/ (C‘ on A

NAYS: NOUF }L)&

Page 2 of 3



Resolution No.

' [(1 e
ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Montrose, Michigan, atZ meeting held on / ke
L2 VA , 2025, by a vote of in favor and opposed. - E f :
CITY OF MONTROSE

By 743*—"5

Thomas J. Banks, Mayor

/ /j .
Attest: C// (% )f-}’}’ /f {f_ (A /,

Christina M. Rush, City Clerk
i € ifué(}-; Py ,2025
¥

88133:00004:201493921-1

Page 3 of 3



106 W State Street

Barbara Valentine <manager@cityofmontrose.us> Mon, Jan 27, 2025 at 1:50 PM
To: Ronald Drzewicki <rjdrzewicki@gmail.com>, Bruce Johnston <revitalization.inc@gmail.com>, Dean Yeotis

<deanyeotis@yahoo.com>

Ron,

| do not see the need for a Variance because the Zoning Ordinance neither allows nor disallows First Floor Residential,
although it does specify First Floor Commercial Spaces and recognizes Bed and Breakfast Inns.

Therefore, | am going say that you do not need a Variance.

Now, with that being said, | am taking a Zoning Permit Application Packet to Council tomorrow that is RRC Approved,
along with the Resolution to Engage with the RRC Program (both necessary to you and the MEDC Rap, | believe). | will
forward the Zoning Permit Application to you once it is approved, and you will need that to apply for the Building Permit. |
have the drawings, etc., now so this should be very quick. I'll issue you the Zoning Permit for your Submitted Plans. If you

run into any issues with that at all with Matt Leoni, let me know.

| am in the process of cleaning up loose ends and establishing systems and processes here, so please bear with me.



Variance Description - City of Montrose

January 27, 2025

Petitioner Name: Dean Yeotis - Ramby, LLC

Property address for variance: 106 W State Street

The property owner, Dean Yeotis — Ramby, LLC, recently purchased the property and plans
to invest approximately $2.2 million in a mixed-use project that will add 5 new residential
apartments downtown and provide two commercial spaces on the first floor. The owner
plans to apply fora MEDC RAP 3.0 grant to provide much needed gap funding for the

project.

The variance request is to allow a one-bedroom rear-entry apartment on the first floor.
Using the back third of the first floor for one residential unit allows for efficient use of the
square footage, adds housing, and helps provide a reasonable economic return for the

project.

The cost of construction and materials and the competitive nature of the construction
industry for the proposed development are high and the income generated by the first-floor
apartment is important for the owner to capture a reasonable economic return. If
approved, the variance will allow the owner to meet the minimum parameters of the MEDC

RAP application economic indicators.

If approved, the variance will improve the essential character of the neighborhood by fully
renovating a functionally obsolete building in the heart of downtown. The renovated
structure will bring two attractive commercial spaces to State Street while increasing
downtown residents. The first-floor rear-entry apartment will be handicap accessible and

highly desirable to prospective tenants.



8/4/25, 8:46 AM Montrose, Ml Code of Ordinances

Sec. 12.1. - Required site plan review.

Prior to the establishment of a new use, change of use, addition to an existing use, or the erection of any
building in a zoning district, subject to the conditions listed below, a site plan shall be submitted and
approved, approved with conditions, or disapproved by the city planning commission [now planning board
—see Charter_8 5-201] in accordance with the ordinance requirements of this article.

1. Site plan reviews are required for all permitted principal uses and structures in all zoning
districts (except for the single-family detached and two-family dwellings and their accessory
uses) and all special land uses in all zoning districts.

2. When the proposed new construction or remodeling constitutes an addition to an existing
building, or use, site plan review procedures may be modified, at the discretion of the zoning
administrator, to provide for an administrative review by the zoning administrator in lieu of a
more formal review by the city planning commission [now planning board—see Charter § 5-
201]. The zoning administrator may conduct an administrative review provided both of the
following are true:

a. No variances to the ordinance are required.
b. The proposed new construction would not increase the total square footage of the
building greater than 25 percent or 1,000 square feet, whichever is less.

3. For those cases requiring site plan review solely as a result of building reoccupancy, site plan
review procedures may be modified, at the discretion of the zoning administrator, to provide
for an administrative review by the zoning administrator in lieu of a more formal review by
the city planning commission [now planning board—see Charter § 5-201]. The zoning
administrator may conduct an administrative review provided all of the following are true:

a. Such use is conducted within a completely enclosed building.

b. Reoccupancy does not create additional parking demands, beyond 25 percent of that
which exists.

c. Reoccupancy does not substantially alter the character of the site.

4. Every site plan submitted for review shall be in accordance with the requirements of this
ordinance. Administrative review procedures are not intended to modify any ordinance

regulation or development standard.

Sec. 12.2. - Application procedure.

Application for site plan review shall be made by submitting the following materials to the zoning

administrator at least 30 days prior to the planning commission [now planning board—see Charter § 5-201]

meeting at which the site plan is to be considered:

1. Ten copies of a site plan containing all of the information required in_section 12.3.

about:blank 1/4



8/4/25, 8:46 AM

Z
3

Montrose, MI Code of Ordinances
A completed application on an appropriate form provided by the zoning administrator.
Payment of an application fee, which shall be nonrefundable, may be established by the city

council.

Sec. 12.3. - Required site plan contents.

about:blank

1. Asite plan submitted in accordance with this article shall contain all of the following information:

a.

b.

The date, north arrow, and scale. The scale shall not be more than one inch equals 20 feet.
The name and address of the individual responsible for the preparation of the site plan.

The property size in acres and square feet.

All existing and proposed lot lines and dimensions, including setback lines and existing
easements.

The location of all existing structures, street rights-of-way, parking areas and driveways within
100 feet of the property.

The location and dimensions of all existing and proposed structures on the property.

The location and dimensions of all existing and proposed drives, sidewalks, fences, curb
openings, signs, and loading/unloading areas. Parking areas shall be shown, including the
dimensions of a typical space and aisle. The total number of parking spaces to be provided
and the method by which required parking was computed shall be noted on the site plan.
Location of exterior site lighting shall be shown, including specification of the height and style
of fixtures.

Location of exterior trash facilities, including type of screening.

The existing zoning of all properties abutting the subject property.

Locations and specifications for all proposed landscaping on the site, including size at time of
planting, and species of all plant materials to be installed.

Size and location of existing and proposed sewer and water facilities and storm sewers
including valves, hydrants, manholes, stormwater intakes and cleanouts.

Locations of all utilities on the site, including but not limited to natural gas, electric, cable
television, and telephone.

Existing and proposed elevation contours shall be shown at two-foot intervals. Direction of

drainage flows shall be indicated. If applicable, the boundary of any area within the 100-year
floodplain, as determined by the Federal Insurance Administration flood insurance rate map,

shall be identified.

2. The following documentation shall accompany the site plan:

a.

The name and address of the property owner and petitioner, if different, and proof of

ownership or option to purchase by the petitioner.

2/4



8/4/25, 8:46 AM Montrose, Ml Code of Ordinances

b. Typical elevation views, with dimensions, of all sides of each principal building type.
c. Summary schedules with the following information, as applicable, shall be provided:

(1) Total site area.

(2) Net site area exclusive of right-of-way.

(3) Minimum, maximum, and average lot area.

(4) Number, size, and bedroom mix of dwelling units proposed.

(5) List of commercial uses proposed, and the gross floor area of each use.

(6) Area and percentage of site coverage by buildings, pavement and open space.
d. A legal description of the subject property, and a street address.

3. The zoning administrator may waive any of the requirements of [this] section 12.3, if such

information is not necessary for the review of the site plan.

Sec. 12.4. - Site plan review standards.

All site plans shall comply with applicable provisions of this ordinance and with each of the following

standards:

1. Natural features. Existing natural features of the site, including vegetation, topography, water
features and other such features, shall be preserved to the greatest extent practical. Only
those areas under actual development shall be disturbed.

2. Building relationships. Buildings and structures shall be placed in an orderly, nonrandom

fashion such that an uncrowded, open appearance is maintained.
3. Drives, parking, and circulation.

a. Vehicular and pedestrian circulation shall be designed so as to provide for safe and
efficient movement of vehicles and pedestrians.

b. Points of vehicular access to public streets shall be limited to the minimum number
required to provide safe and efficient access. Points of access shall be directly aligned or

be offset a minimum of 150 feet, wherever possible.

4. Surface water drainage. Special attention shall be given to proper site surface drainage so
that removal of surface waters will not adversely affect neighboring properties or the public
storm drainage system. Temporary on-site storage to reduce peak runoff from the site may
be required. Surface water in all paved areas shall be collected at intervals so that it will not
obstruct the flow of vehicular or pedestrian traffic and will not create standing water in the

paved areas.

about:blank 3/4



8/4/25, 8:46 AM Montrose, MI Code of Ordinances
Special features. Exposed storage areas, trash areas, service areas, truck loading areas, utility buildings and
structures and similar accessory areas shall be reasonably screened from view from adjoining streets, and
adjoining properties.
6. Emergency access. The site plan shall provide for adequate access to the site and to all
buildings for emergency vehicles.
7. Exterior lighting. The lighting shall be located and designed so that illumination is directed

away from adjacent properties and streets.

Sec. 12.5. - Planning commission [now planning board] actions.

The planning commission [now planning board—see Charter 8 5-201], upon reviewing a site plan, shall

take one of the following actions:

1. Approval. If the site plan meets all the zoning ordinance and related development
requirements and standards, the planning commission [now planning board—see Charter 8
5-201] shall record such approval, and the chairperson shall sign three copies of the site plan
filing one in the official site plan file, forwarding one to the zoning administrator, and
returning one to the applicant.

2. Disapproval. If the site plan does not meet zoning ordinance and related development
requirements and standards, the planning commission [now planning board—see Charter 8
5-201] shall record the reasons for denial. The applicant may subsequently refile a corrected

site plan under the same procedures followed for the initial submission.

3. Conditional approval. If minor corrections to the site are necessary, which can be clearly
noted, then the planning commission [now planning board—see Charter_§ 5-201] shall so
note such conditions, and the chairperson shall sign three site plans as conditionally
approved and stating the necessary conditions. One copy shall be retained in the official site
plan file, one forwarded to the zoning administrator, and one returned to the applicant.

4. Table. If the site plan is found to be in violation of the requirements or incomplete with
respect to necessary information, the planning commission [now planning board—see
Charter_8 5-201] may table action on the site plan until ordinance compliance is shown or

required additional information is provided.

about:blank

4/4



CITY OF MONTROSE
MEMORANDUM

Date: August 3, 2025
To: Chairman Ray Foust and Planning Board Members
From: Joe Karlichek, Interim City Manage@

Subject: Consider Review the PUD Option

Background:
Enclosed for your consideration is a memorandum from the City of Montrose City Planner following discussion

with both this board and meeting with Adam Young.

Contained in this memorandum is the city planner’s memorandum and draft language, dated July 31, 2025, that
would amend the City of Montrose Zoning Ordinance by establishing a new Article 14 titled Planned Unit
Development District. (Presently, Article 14 is “Reserved”) Please review the draft zoning amendment and share
any comments or feedback with us. Ultimately, the Planning Commission would need to host a public hearing to
gain citizen comments on the proposed language. After the public hearing is held, the Planning Commission
would forward a recommendation of adoption to City Council.

Recommendation: It is recommended the Planning Commission review the PUD Option and direct city
administration to place this on the September 11, 2025, Planning Board Agenda as directed by our city
planner.



_%PI\E MEMORANDUM

MEMORANDUM

To: City of Montrose Planning Commission

From: Adam Young, AICP, Professional Planner, Wade Trim

Date: July 31, 2025

Subject: Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment - Planned Unit Development District

City Administration has requested that we assist the Planning Commission in the establishment of a
new planned unit development (PUD) option within the City of Montrose Zoning Ordinance. We are
pleased to respond to this request.

A PUD option allows flexibility in the regulation of land development and encourages innovation in
land use and variety in design, layout, and type of structures. An approved PUD project often
combines different yet compatible land uses — like housing, recreation, and commercial. The PUD
review process allows the city to grant flexibility in terms of minimum lot sizes, setbacks, density, and
mixture of uses. In exchange for the granting of regulatory flexibility, the developer must propose an
innovative project that offers community benefits, such as the provision of unique amenities and the
preservation of open space.

Most municipalities have PUD language within their zoning ordinance, giving property
owners/developers the ability to propose, and the municipality the authority to approve, a PUD.
However, the City of Montrose Zoning Ordinance does not establish a PUD option. The City's recently
adopted Master Plan specifically encourages high-quality and unique development projects that offer
a mixture of uses, are designed to protect and preserve the natural environment, and achieve similar
community goals. Establishing a PUD option in the City of Montrose Zoning Ordinance would allow for
this to occur.

Enclosed for your consideration is draft language, dated July 31, 2025, that would amend the City of
Montrose Zoning Ordinance by establishing a new Article 14 titled Planned Unit Development
District. (Presently, Article 14 is “Reserved”) Please review the draft zoning amendment and share
any comments or feedback with us. Ultimately, the Planning Commission would need to host a public
hearing to gain citizen comments on the proposed language. After the public hearing is held, the
Planning Commission would forward a recommendation of adoption to City Council.

If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me at 313.961.3651 or
ayoung@wadetrim.com.

ACY:Ikf
MTR 6111-01D

20250731_PlanningCommission-Memo.docx

Enclosure: Planned Unit Development Zoning Text Amendment, dated June 31, 2025



City of Montrose, Michigan

Potential Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment
Adding a new Planned Unit Development (PUD) Option
City of Montrose Zoning Ordinance (Code of Ordinances/Appendix A)

July 31, 2025 DRAFT
Prepared by Wade Trim

The City of Montrose Zoning Ordinance, Appendix A of the Code of Ordinances, is proposed to be
amended to add a new Article 14 titled Planned Unit Development, to read as follows:

ARTICLE 14. - PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (PUD) DISTRICT
Sec. 14.1. - Purpose and Intent.

The purpose of this article is to permit flexibility in the regulation of land development;
encourage innovation in land use and variety in design, layout, and type of structures constructed;
achieve economy and efficiency in the use of land, natural resources and utilities; encourage
provision of useful open space; provide adequate housing, employment, and shopping
opportunities particularly suited to the needs of the residents of the City of Montrose and
encourage the use, reuse, and improvement of existing sites and buildings when the uniform
regulations contained in zoning districts do not provide adequate protection and safeguards for the
site or surrounding area.

The planned unit development option is intended to accommodate developments with
mixed or varied uses, to allow some degree of flexibility in the application of standards and
regulations in this zoning ordinance to achieve innovation to development on sites with unusual
topography or unique settings within the community, or on land which exhibits difficult or costly
development problems, and shall not be allowed where this option is sought primarily to avoid the
imposition of standards and requirements of zoning classifications rather than to achieve the stated
purposes above.

The provisions of this article provide enabling authority and standards for the submission,
review, and approval of applications for planned unit development.

Sec. 14.2. - Applicability and Land Use Authorization.

1. A planned unit development (PUD) may be applied for in any zoning district. The
granting of a planned unit development application shall require a rezoning by way
of amendment of this zoning ordinance upon the recommendation of the Planning
Commission and approval of the City Council.

2, Any land use authorized in this zoning ordinance may be included in a planned unit
development, subject to adequate public health, safety, and welfare protection
mechanisms being designed into the development to ensure the compatibility of
varied land uses both within and outside the development.

Page 1



Sec. 14.3. - PUD Eligibility Criteria.

The applicant proposing a planned unit development must demonstrate each of the
following criteria as a condition to being entitled to planned unit development treatment:

1. Granting of the planned unit development will result in at least one of the following:
a. A recognizable and material benefit to the ultimate users of the project and
to the community, where such benefit would otherwise be unfeasible or

unlikely to be achieved without application of the planned unit development
regulations;

b. Long-term protection and preservation of natural resources and natural
features of a significant quantity and/or quality, where such benefit would
otherwise be unfeasible or unlikely to be achieved without application of the
planned unit development regulations; or

(o A nonconforming use shall, to a material extent, be rendered more
conforming, or less offensive, to the zoning district in which it is situated.

2\ The proposed type and density of use shall not result in an unreasonable increase in
the need for or burden upon public services, facilities, streets, and utilities;

3. The proposed development shall be consistent with the public health, safety, and
welfare of the city;

4. The proposed development shall not result in an unreasonable negative
environmental impact on the subject site or surrounding land;

5 The proposed development shall not result in an unreasonable negative economic
impact upon surrounding properties;

6. The proposed development shall be under single ownership and/or control such
that there is a single person having responsibility for completing the project in
conformity with this Ordinance; and

7. The proposed development shall be consistent with the goals and policies of the
Master Plan.

Sec. 14.4. - PUD Design Standards.
The following design standards shall apply:
1. Residential design standards.

a. The property shall be a minimum size of two (2) acres.

Page 2



Residential density shall not be greater than the maximum density
permitted in the zoning district in which the property is situated
immediately prior to reclassification under this article.

Additional density for residential uses may be allowed at the discretion of
the Planning Commission and based upon a demonstration by the applicant
of consistency with the Master Plan and of planning and design excellence
resulting in a material benefit to the city, adjacent land uses, and/or the
ultimate users of the project, where such benefit would otherwise be
unlikely to be achieved without the application of the PUD regulations
including, without limitation, innovative design producing significant energy
efficiency, pedestrian or vehicular safety, long term aesthetic beauty, and
protection and preservation of natural resources and features.

Non-residential design standards.

The property shall be a minimum size of one (1) acre.

Non-residential uses may be permitted in combination with other non-
residential uses or as part of a common development with residential uses.

The non-residential uses, including parking and vehicular traffic ways, shall
be separated and buffered from residential units in a manner consistent
with good land and community planning principles.

General design standards.

a.

All regulations applicable to setbacks, parking and loading, general
provisions, and other requirements shall be met in relation to each
respective land use in the development based upon zoning districts in which
the use is listed as a principal permitted use. In all cases, the strictest
provisions shall apply.

Notwithstanding subsection (3)(a) above, deviations with respect to such
regulations may be granted as part of the overall approval of the planned
unit development, provided features or elements demonstrated by the
applicant and deemed adequate by the Planning Commission are designed
into the project plan for the purpose of achieving the objectives of this
article.

To the maximum extent feasible, the development shall be designed so as to
preserve the natural resources and natural features. The benefit, which
would reasonably be expected to accrue from the proposal, shall be balanced
against the reasonably foreseeable detriments of the activity, taking into
consideration the local, state, and national concern for the protection and
preservation of the natural resources or features and the following criteria:

(1) The availability of feasible and prudent alternative methods of
accomplishing any development;

Page 3



(2) The extent and permanence of the beneficial or detrimental effects of
the proposed activity; and

(3) The size, quality, and rarity of the natural resources or natural
features which would be impaired or destroyed.

d. A perimeter setback and berming shall be required from the Planning
Commission for the purpose of buffering the development in relation to
surrounding properties. If the planned unit development project includes
non-residential uses adjacent to a district authorizing residential uses,
and/or if the project is larger than one acre in area, such perimeter setback
shall be established with a dimension from the property line of up to 50 feet
at the discretion of the Planning Commission, taking into consideration the
use or uses in and adjacent to the development. The setback distance need
not be uniform at all points on the perimeter of the development.

e. Thoroughfare, drainage, and utility design shall meet or exceed the
standards otherwise applicable in connection with each of the respective
types of uses served.

f. Underground installation of utilities shall be required, including electricity
and telephone, as found necessary by the Planning Commission.

g Pedestrian walkways shall be separated from vehicular circulation, as found
necessary by the Planning Commission.

h. Signage, lighting, landscaping, building materials for the exterior of all
structures, and other features of the project shall be designed and completed
with the objective of achieving an integrated and controlled development,
consistent with the character of the community, surrounding development
or developments, and natural features of the area.

i Where non-residential uses adjoin off-site residentially zoned property,
noise reduction, and visual screening mechanisms such as earthen and/or
landscape berms and/or decorative walls, shall be employed. The Planning
Commission, at its discretion, shall review and approve the design and
location of such mechanisms.

j The City Council, upon the recommendation of the Planning Commission,

shall resolve all ambiguities as to applicable regulations using this article,
the Master Plan, and other city standards or policies as a guide.

Sec. 14.5. - PUD Review Procedure.

Review of a planned unit development shall occur in two phases, in accordance with the
following:

Page 4



1. Preliminary PUD Plan Submission and Review.

a.

The applicant shall submit the following together with the application for
PUD preliminary phase approval:

(1).  Apreliminary PUD plan depicting the proposed locations of streets,
parking areas, open spaces, buildings and structures, and their
spatial relationships, the relationship to off-site improvements and
infrastructure and any unusual topographic features.

(2).  Anarrative report providing a description of the project, discussing
the market concept and feasibility of the project, and explaining the
manner in which the criteria and standards set forth in section 14.3
and section 14.4 have been met.

The Planning Commission shall review the preliminary PUD plan as it relates
to the criteria and standards set forth in section 14.3 and section 14.4 and
make appropriate comments or suggestions concerning the proposed
development scheme.

This phase shall not be construed to require approval of the preliminary
PUD plan by the Planning Commission. Further, the preliminary PUD plan is
only intended to be used as a general guide to both the applicant and the
city.

Upon completion of the preliminary PUD review phase, the applicant may
proceed with a formal submission of the final PUD plan. Submission of a final
PUD plan shall occur within six (6) months from the date of preliminary PUD
review. If a final PUD plan is not submitted by the applicant within six (6)
months, preliminary PUD plan review will be required in accordance with
this subsection.

2. Final PUD Plan Submission and Review.

a.

An application for PUD final phase approval shall be submitted along with
the following information:

(1) A site plan meeting all requirements of section 12.3;
(2) A separately delineated specification of all deviations from this
zoning ordinance, which would otherwise be applicable to the uses

and development proposed in the absence of this planned unit
development article;

(3) A specific schedule of the intended development and construction
details, including phasing or timing;

(4)  Aspecific schedule of the general improvements to constitute a part
of the development including, without limitation, lighting, signage,

Page 5



(5

(6)

the mechanisms designed to reduce noise, utilities, and visual
screening features;

A specification of the exterior building materials with respect to the
structures proposed in the project; and

Signatures of all parties having an interest in the property.

The final PUD plan shall constitute an application to amend this zoning
ordinance, and shall be noticed for public hearing as a zoning amendment
before the Planning Commission, and otherwise acted upon by the Planning
Commission and the City Council, as provided by law.

Following the public hearing, the Planning Commission shall review the final
PUD plan and shall take one of the following actions:

(1)

(2)

(3)

Approval. Upon finding that the final PUD plan meets the criteria and
standards set forth in section 14.3 and section 14.4, the Planning
Commission shall recommend approval to the City Council.

Tabling. Upon finding that the final PUD plan does not meet the
criteria and standards set forth in section 14.3 and section 14.4, but
could meet such criteria if revised, the Planning Commission may
table action until a revised final plan is resubmitted.

Denial. Upon finding that the final PUD plan does not and cannot
meet the criteria and standards set forth in section 14.3 and section
14.4, the Planning Commission shall recommend denial to the City
Council.

The Planning Commission shall, to the extent it deems appropriate, submit
detailed recommendations relative to the final planned unit development
project including, without limitation, recommendations with respect to
matters on which the City Council must exercise discretion.

Upon receipt of a recommendation from the Planning Commission, the City
Council shall review the final PUD Plan.

(1)

(2)

Taking into consideration the recommendations of the Planning
Commission and the criteria and standards set forth in section 14.3
and section 14.4, the City Council shall approve, table or deny the
final PUD plan.

Prior to approval of a final PUD plan, the City Council shall require all
standards and conditions of approval to be incorporated in a
development agreement. The agreement shall be prepared by the
City Attorney, approved by the City Council, and signed by both the
city and the applicant.

Page 6



Sec. 14.6. - Conditions.

Reasonable conditions may be required with the approval of a planned unit development, to
the extent authorized by law, in accordance with the following:

1 Conditions imposed shall be for the purpose of: ensuring that public services and
facilities affected by a proposed land use or activity will be capable of
accommodating increased service and facility loads caused by the land use or
activity; protecting the natural environment and conserving natural resources and
energy; ensuring compatibility with adjacent uses of land; and, promoting the use of
land in a socially and economically desirable manner.

2. Conditions imposed shall be necessary to meet the intent and purpose of this article
and be designed to: protect the public health, safety, and welfare; preserve natural
features and resources; and, ensure compliance with the standards of this article.

3. All conditions imposed shall be made a part of the record of the approved planned
unit development.

Sec.14.7. - Phasing

Where a planned unit development project is proposed for construction in phases, the
planning and design shall be such that, upon completion, each phase shall be capable of standing on
its own in terms of the presence of services, facilities, and open space, and shall contain the
necessary components to ensure protection of natural resources and the health, safety, and welfare
of the users of the planned unit development and the residents of the surrounding area. All
conditions that are phase specific shall be completed during development of the subject phase, and
cannot be postponed for completion during other phases. In addition, in developments which
include residential and non-residential uses, the relative mix of uses, and the scheduled completion
of construction for each phase shall be disclosed and determined to be reasonable at the discretion
of the City Council, after recommendation from the Planning Commission.

Sec. 14.8. - Commencement and Completion of Construction.

To ensure completion of required improvements, the city is authorized to impose
performance guarantees in accordance with section 19.4. Construction shall be commenced within
one (1) year following final approval of a planned unit development and shall proceed substantially
in conformance with the schedule set forth by the applicant, as required by section 14.7. If
construction is not commenced within such time, any approval of a final PUD plan on the project
shall expire and be null and void, provided, an extension for a specified period may be granted by
the City Council upon good cause shown if such request is made to the City Council prior to the
expiration of the initial period. Moreover, in the event a final PUD plan has expired, the City Council,
based on a recommendation from the Planning Commission, shall be authorized to rezone the
property in any reasonable manner and, if the property remains classified as PUD, a new
application shall be required, and shall be reviewed in light of then existing and applicable law and
ordinance provisions.

Page 7



Sec. 14.9. - Effect of Approval.

When approved, the planned unit development, with all conditions imposed, if any, shall
constitute the land use authorization for the property, and all improvement and use shall be in
conformity with such amendment. Notice of adoption of the final PUD plan and conditions shall be
recorded by the applicant at the County Register of Deeds, evidence of which shall be supplied to
the Zoning Administrator.

Sec. 14.10. - Amendments to an Approved Final PUD Plan.
Incidental or minor changes may be approved by the Planning Commission if the proposed
modifications do not alter the basic design or land uses of the final PUD plan. If the Planning

Commission determines that the proposed modifications are significant or major, review and
approval in accordance with section 14.5 shall be required.

Page 8



CITY OF MONTROSE
MEMORANDUM

Date: August 3, 2025
To: Chairman Ray Foust and Planning Board Members
From: Joe Karlichek, Interim City Manage@

Subject: Consider Discussion of Social District

Background:

At the July 17, 2025, meeting of the (PC) Planning Board, Vice Chairman Mr. Anthony Brown asked that
“Social District” be placed on the agenda for the Planning Board to discuss.

Attached to this memorandum are relative documents to the assist the PC in its discussion relative to Social
Districts.

Recommendation: It is recommended the PC discuss the Social District, specifically, its value, lack of value,
change or not change of the Zoning Ordinance (if the board desires to implement a “social district”) so that city
administration has clearer guidance and direction and be able to, with a degree of evidence, inform the City
Council and the DDA Board at their regularly scheduled board meeting in August 2025.



FACT SHEET

Social Districts

Introduction

The State of Michigan enacted a new law intended to spur economic activity and provide flexibility for hospitality
businesses by enabling the on-site sale and off-site consumption of alcoholic beverages in designated “Social District” areas.
On July 1, 2020, Governor Uhitmer signed House Bill 5781 into law (MCL 436.1551) creating the “Social District Permit,”
which allows local governments to designate a Social District within their jurisdictions. Businesses that are granted a Social
District Permit may sell alcoholic liquor (beer, wine, mixed spirits, or mixed drinks) on their licensed premises to customers
who may then consume the alcoholic liquor within the commons area of the Social District.

Permit Information for Local Governments

Local governments may now designate a Social District that contains a “commons area.” Once designated, “qualified
licensees” whose licensed premises are contiguous to the commons area within the Social District and who obtain a license
from the Michigan Liquor Control Commission (MLCC) may permit patrons to leave the licensed premises with the alcohol
and consume it within the commons area.

Under MCL 436,1551(8)(a), a “commons area” is defined as: “an area within a social district clearly designated and clearly
marked by the governing body of the local governmental unit that is shared by and contiguous to the premises of at least
two other qualified licensees, Commons area does not include the licensed premises of any qualified licensee,”

Along with designating a Social District that contains a commons area, which must be clearly defined and marked with
signs, a local government must establish local management and maintenance plans, including hours of operation, for a
commons area. The statute provides that a local governmental unit shall not designate a Social District that would close a
road unless the governing body receives prior approval from the road authority with jurisdiction over the road. In addition,
the commons area must be maintained in a manner that protects the health and safety of the community.

A Social District designation must be filed with the MLCC, and include:

* A copy of the resolution passed by the governing body designating the Social District and commons area:

* A copy of management and maintenance plans, including the hours of operation, established by the local
governmental unit for the Social District and commons area; and

e A diagram or map that clearly shows the boundaries of the Social District and commons area and identifies the
qualified licensees that are contiguous to the commons area on the diagram or map.

To the extent a commons area threatens the health, safety, or welfare of the public or has become a public nuisance, a
local government may revoke the Social District designation. Before revoking the designation, the local government must
hold at least one public hearing on the proposed revocation, with appropriate notice being given under the Open Meetings
Act (OMA). Any revocation of the Social District must be filed with the MLCC,

Bars and Restaurants May Apply for a Social District Permit

Bars and restaurants who are “qualified licensees” and wish to take advantage of the new law must first seek application
approval from the governing body of their local government. Qualified licensees may then apply to the MLCC for a Social
District Permit.

Pursuant to the statute, with some restrictions, qualified licensees include holders of Class C, Tavern, A-Hotel, B-Hotel,
Ciub, G-1, G-2, and Brewpub licenses as well as licensees with on-premises and off-premises tasting rooms.

Michigan Municipal League | September 2020 1



Upon receiving a Social District Permit, and upon additional approvals that may or may not be required by the
municipality, a licensee may sell alcohol on its licensed premises in approved containers for customers to remove and
consume in the commons area. A licensee is not permitted to sell alcohol in a commons area,

Approved containers must be glass free and not more than 16 oz, must prominently display the licensee’s trade name or
logo or some other mark that is unique to the licensee that sold the alcohol as well as a logo or mark unique to the

commons area,

This Fact Sheet was provided by Sarah J. Gabis of the law firm of Foster Swift Collins & Swift, P.C.

Michigan Municipal League | September 2020



Tecumseh documents:

Resolution

Map

Qualified licensees

Common Areas Management and Maintenance Plan

Commons Area Use Application



CITY COUNCIL

Resolution R-16-20

Resolution #16-20 - Establishing Social Districts

a Cityof CITY OF TECUMSEH

WHEREAS, Michigan Public Act 124 of 2020 was signed into law on July 1, 2020; and

WHEREAS, the law allows Michigan municipalities to establish Social Districts that
allow for Commons Areas where two or more contiguous licensed establishments could
sell alcoholic beverages in special cups to be taken into the Commons Areas for
consumption; and

WHEREAS, the Tecumseh Social District would be created and managed by the City
through a collaboration with its Downtown Development Authority; and

WHEREAS, the Tecumseh Social District boundaries are generally Logan Street,
Ottawa Street, Pottawattamie Street, and Pearl Street; and

WHEREAS, the Commons Areas boundaries incorporate the City-owned parking lots in
the downtown area as well as the adjoining sections or North and South Evans Street.
The Commons Areas include the sidewalks and streets along with the public parking
lots within the boundaries that are not included in the qualified licensees' premises; and

WHEREAS, the City of Tecumseh will follow all stipulations of Michigan Public Act 124
of 2020 and follow established best practices in the creation and maintenance of the
Social District; and

WHEREAS, the creation of the Tecumseh Social District will assist our downtown
businesses in adapting to the social distancing requirements of the COVID-19 crisis as

well as attract customers for enhanced outdoor dining and entertainment experiences in
downtown Tecumseh.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Tecumseh City Council does hereby
approve the creation of the Tecumseh Social District as depicted in the attached map
(Exhibit A) for consideration by the Michigan Liquor Control Commission.

Motion for adoption by: Naugle

Supported by: Harmon

AYES Harmon, Naugle, Riddle, See, Wimple, Baker, Fox



NAYS

ABSENT

This is to certify that this resolution was duly adopted at the meeting of the City Council

on Sep 8, 2020.
Y Bed TRy

ckson L. Baker Tonya A. Miller
Mayor Tecumseh City Clerk
CERTIFICATION

|, the undersigned, the duly qualified City Clerk for the City of Tecumseh, County of
Lenawee, Michigan do hereby certify that the foregoing constitutes a true and complete
copy of a motion adopted by the City Council of the City of Tecumseh, on September 8,
2020, the original of which is in my office, and that said meeting was conducted and
public notice of said meeting was given pursuant to and in full compliance with the Open
Meetings Act, being Act 267,Public Acts of Michigan, 1976, as amended, and that the
full set of minutes from said meeting will be made available, as required by said Act.

Dated:q | 10| 2020

Ty et

Tonya A. Miller
Tecumseh City Clerk




Downtown Tecumseh
social District Gommons Are

Y T

iz Masters » l.ungllomt
AcComting Sa!e__s .

q'_— S -
P et - 23 %

B T
Tecumseh
0 L{{
el T
Dwntuwn F

; ' : = Prigs
Fairfriai!nriﬁe- ‘ All Phases Home Service e
ichael Dosey o
. S - ﬂggl;qjla}'{h_rippt.rnu_\

L

Street

i

Appeal
Boulekgrl Chir
ntamere Winery

Pearl

L 0
E‘ cumseh Antique

R

 Edivard Jones Tvestments
Phagmacy

Schmidt,&.Songe-

Li

H&R Block

|
==pplevard Market

gll:re_e__t

5 d Seott

Joran oS E E2
hl.mutr
Statiqn

| otug I"i l'.b'

Inruluhumauﬁ

Grey FoxE

TecumseNEbi

Michigan Wares
& {eltie's Book Nook

+

Terwmseh Bre:. & P36ty

El

ey

E —
South Evans

Pearl Street
n 4

I

s Three Ravens
Printing

T—

Giraund Tero
Hair Salon

G




9876 Yaswnda| ‘pa|g 08eaiyd ‘M 87T
9876 Yyaswnoa| ‘pAjg o3ealy) '3 9T
98761 Yaswnda] ‘pAjg 0dediyd '3 L0T

98T6¥ Yaswnaa] "pAjg 03ed1yd "M TTT

98Z6% Yyaswnaa| ‘pA|g 03ediyd ‘M ST

9876 Yyaswinda| ‘pa|g o8ediyd ‘M €21

9876 Yaswinda| IS SUeA3 ‘s OTT

9876 Yyaswinda| "pA|g odediy) 3 €T

98261

yaswinia] 1§ o9IWEelemellod "M 10T

98Z6¥ Yaswinda] "1 SUBAT 'S /0T
SSalppy

0D Suimalg yaswnaa |
seles|es
luelneisay asnoydoq ayy
aqnd % (|19 UMOISWOH S Yf
sAog |i1seg
qnjD yaswnaaj ayy
U0I1e}S 193135 SUBA]
AJBuipn 21awejuay
yaswnaa|
4O "USSY 3WOH |elIOWSIA OIS uedLIBWY
gqnd Aepp Suoapp

veaa

S23SuUa2IT palyend
1214351Q [e1d0S
yaswnda] jo A1n

J71 ‘Auedwo) Buimalg yaswnoaa |
J71 s, eles|es

D11 ‘wueinelsay asnoH 8oqg ayy
D71 ‘s8ulp|oH jueinelsay Sy

JU| ‘SYIuAlQ

gn|d yaswnaa] ayy

D71 UOIlelS 193415 SUBA]

271 ‘Adsuipp auaweiuay

yaswniaj jo

"USSY 3WOH |eLIOWA UOIFaT ueduaWY

‘U] gnd Aepp Suoupn
SWEeN JUNo2Y

80TLET
LETSET
o8v/Let
1109¢¢
660ST¢
CS8EST
COLPVET
LTPEET

LT18
860¢
al vavi



P.O. Box 396, Tecumseh, MI 49286  www.mytecumseh.org

Commons Areas Management and Maintenance Plan

Overview

In an effort to support local restaurants, microbreweries, bars, and similar food service
businesses, the City of Tecumseh has established a permitting process for temporary
outdoor social districts and commons areas (“Commons Areas”). Commons Areas are
intended to allow for outdoor dining and alcoholic beverage consumption on City
properties that are adjacent to or near associated business establishments. This
application package is designed to ensure compliance with the Michigan Liquor Control
Commission (MLCC) guidelines and Public Act 58 of 1998 as amended by Public Act 124
of 2020.

The Commons Areas are proposed to be administered through the City’s Developmental
Services Office and permits from both the MLCC and the City are required prior to
utilization by any qualified establishment(s).

Intent

Commons Areas are intended provide extra outdoor space for dining and consumption
of alcoholic beverages while ensuring sufficient separation between unrelated parties.
This is in response to the social distancing requirements necessitated by the COVID-19
crisis. The areas will accommodate tables, chairs, barriers, boundaries, and accessory
materials related to the offered services. Qualified establishments, as defined by PA 124

of 2020 may apply to utilize certain specifically designated places within the

established Commons Areas:

1. City owned parking lots in the Central Business District.

2. The North and South Evans Street road right-of-way.

3. In accordance with the MLCC guidelines, all Commons Areas must be
“contiguous to the premises of at least 2 qualified licensees.”

It is also intended that Commons Areas may be shared by multiple businesses, so long
as the shared use is defined by the City authorization and joint operation and
maintenance guidelines are established.

However, public spaces immediately in front of or behind a business establishment will
be reserved solely for that business (exp. public sidewalks and parking spaces).

All designated spaces will be subject to review by Tecumseh Police and Fire
Departments for traffic and safety considerations.

Developmental Services Office: (517) 424-6544



City of Tecumseh
Commons Areas Management and Maintenance Plan
Page 2 of 5

Other Options for Outdoor Dining and Alcoholic Beverage Consumption

The establishment of the Commons Areas in accordance with the new MLCC provisions
in no way negates the ability of businesses to establish sidewalk cafes for outdoor
dining and acholic beverage consumption in accordance with the pre-existing MLCC
guidelines and City ordinances. The Commons Areas are intended to be supplemental
and in addition to these previous provisions.

Signage and Barriers

The City will prepare generic signs as required by the MLCC Rules that identify the
general boundaries of the Commons Areas. The individual establishments may be
required to provide additional barriers to define the portion of the Commons Area they
plan to utilize and provide for the safety of their customers/patrons. Additional barriers
or barricades as specified by the City will be required when the area utilized is within a
public parking lot and/or on a public street or sidewalk. The City will assist in
coordination between the permitted establishments to minimize the necessary
investment in additional barriers/barricades.

Application Process

Commons Area permits must be requested by the business owner or an authorized
representative. Applications and supplemental information must be provided in
complete form for review and approval by the Building Official.

Required checklist items are the following:

1. Completed City application form.

2. Copy of Michigan Liquor Control Commission Permit. Note: The City will
conduct a preliminary review prior to the applicant submitting their MLCC
permit in order to determine if the proposed use of the Commons Area is
acceptable to the City.

3. Certificate of Liability Insurance, naming the City of Tecumseh additionally
insured.

4. Commons Area layout plan (drawn to-scale with dimensions noted and all
information in legible form).

a. Lot lines, portion(s) of Commons Area intended for use, and proposed
barriers/barricades.

b. Existing entries/exits, sidewalks, structures, and building footprints.

c. Proposed location of tables, chairs, tents, shelters, and other fixtures, allowing
for at least 6 feet minimum between unrelated parties. Note: The City may

Developmental Services Office: (517) 424-6544



City of Tecumseh
Commons Areas Management and Maintenance Plan
Page 3 of 5

require the removal or relocation of these furnishings and fixtures at the end of
each business day in order to facilitate access to the surrounding properties.

d. Outdoor service and host area(s) (if any).

e. Proposed occupancy. Attached is the section of the International Building
Code (IBC) which has been adopted as the standard for
the State of Michigan related to occupancy calculations to provide you with a
starting point. This does not consider the requirements in item (c) above.

General Requirements
Commons Areas are subject to the following requirements:

1. Boundaries, structures, and materials associated with Commons Areas shall:
a. Not impede drivers, pedestrians, or wheelchair users. Note: The City will

consider the extended closure of sections of public parking lots and streets,

subject to maintaining adequate access to the surrounding properties.

Not block sight visibility of remaining parking lot aisles or intersections.

Not impede emergency vehicle and personnel access.

Not prevent access to nearby businesses or homes.

Be approved by City of Tecumseh Police and Fire Departments.

ol = 2

2. Alcohol service shall conform to all Michigan Liquor Control Commission
requirements, including any Social District and Commons Areas Permit
requirements. Specifically:

a. The serving container must prominently display the licensee's trade name or
logo or some other mark that is unique to the licensee that sold the alcohol.

b. The serving container must prominently display a logo or some other mark
that is unique to the commons area.

c. The serving container is not made of glass.

d. The serving container does not have a liquid capacity over 16 ounces.

3. Hours of operation shall begin no earlier than 10:00 AM and food and
beverage service shall discontinue in the Commons Areas no later
than 11:00 PM. However, hours shall be further restricted when adjacent to
residential land uses. Service shall not extend beyond the range established in
the MLCC or City permits.

4. Service shall conform to the permitted days of operation.

5. The layout of boundaries, structures, and materials shall conform to the
proposed outdoor Commons Area layout plan during open hours. Tables,
chairs, and temporary barriers may be permitted to remain outdoors during

closed hours but must be secured. Service items, decorations, cleaning

materials and equipment and other easily stored items must be removed from

Developmental Services Office: (517) 424-6544



City of Tecumseh
Commons Areas Management and Maintenance Plan
Page 4 of 5

the area at the end of each business day. Solid barriers, if incorporated, may
remain for the duration of the permitted timeframe.

6. Sites and surfaces shall be cleaned before service hours and upon close.

7. Tents and other temporary shelter structures shall be approved by the Fire
Department and Building Official.

8. Amplified music shall be set at reasonable levels so as not to disturb owners
and occupants of neighboring properties.

9. Temporary lighting shall be established to ensure safe conditions during
evening hours but shall not result in excessive glare onto adjacent properties.

10. Waste receptacles shall be provided within the Commons Area and shall be
emptied regularly during open hours and at close each day.

11. Heaters must be approved by the Fire Department (type and location).

12. Smoking is not permitted within designated Commons Areas.

Review and Approval

The review of Commons Areas will occur in conjunction with the Developmental
Services Office and Police Department and Fire Departments. The City reserves the
right to request additional details and information to ensure the protection of public
health, safety, and welfare.

If requirements and standards are met, the proposed outdoor social zone will be
permitted for a period of time specified by the Building Official. Reasonable conditions
may be applied by the City to ensure the protection of public health, safety, and
welfare. Plan amendments may be considered at any time but must comply with all
requirements for Commons Areas.

Developmental Services Office: (517) 424-6544



COMMONS AREA USE APPLICATION

Building Services Department
P.0. Box 396, Tecumseh, MI 49286
Ph: 517-424-6544
www,mvtecumseh.org

Date of Application:

Name of Busines:

Requested Date Range for Commons Area Use | From:

To:

Recurring Dates Requested:
(Attach additional sheet if needed)

Name of Owner / Responsible Party:

Mailing Address:

Business Address:
(If different from above)

Contact Person:

Phone #: E-Mail:

Description of Commons Area Services/Uses:

Required Attachments:

I:I Layout Plan D Proof of MLCC Approval

(See Management Plan for Requirements)

D Proof of Liability Insurance
(Naming City Additionally Insured)

I verify all of the information on and attached to this application is

X accurate to the best of my knowledge; and | commit to adhere to
Signature of Owner/Responsible Party the City of Tecumseh Commons Area Management Plan and the
Date: MLCC requirements for Social Districts/Commons Areas.

CITY USE ONLY BELOW THIS LINE

[0 ALL Required Attachments Provided O Logistics Meeting Needed
Department Approval Needed: O Police [ Fire [ Building [ DPW

Permit #: [J Approved Date of Approval:
Conditions of Approval:

X Printed Name:

Signature of Building Official
Date:




Michigan Department of Licensing and Regulatory Affairs
Liquor Control Commission (MLCC)
Toll-Free 866-813-0011 » www.michigan.gov/icc

Local Governmental Units That Have Established Social Districts Under MCL 436.1551

Updated July 25, 2025

Allegan County
Allegan City

Douglas City
Fennville City
Otsego City
Plainwell City
Saugatuck City
Wayland City

Alpena County
e Alpena City

Antrim County
e Central Lake Village

e Elk Rapids Village

Barry County
* Hastings City
e Middleville Village

Branch County
e Coldwater City

Bay County
e Bay City

Berrien County
Benton Harbor City

Bridgman City
Buchanan City
Niles City

St. Joseph City
Stevensville Village
Watervliet City

Benzie County
e Frankfort City

Calhoun County
o Battle Creek City

e Homer Village
¢ Marshall City

Page 1 of 3

Charlevoix County

¢ Boyne City

e East Jordan City

e St. James Township

Clinton County
« Maple Rapids Village

e St Johns City

Crawford County
e Grayling City

Delta County
e Escanaba City

¢ Gladstone City

Dickinson County

¢ Iron Mountain City

Eaton County
¢ Charlotte City

Emmet County
* Petoskey City

Genesee County
e Otisville Village

Gogebic County
e [ronwood City

Grand Traverse County
¢ Traverse City

Hillsdale County
» Hillsdale City

e Reading City

Houghton County
¢ Houghton City

Ingham County
Lansing City

Leslie City
Webberville Village
Williamston City

lonia County
¢ |onia City
e Saranac Village

losco County
¢ Oscoda Township

Jackson County
e Jackson City

Kalamazoo County
e Kalamazoo City

* Vicksburg Village

Kent County
Ada Township

Byron Township
Cedar Springs City
E. Grand Rapids City
Grand Rapids City
Grandville City
Lowell City

Rockford City

Sparta Village

Lapeer County
¢ Almont Village

« Imlay City
e Lapeer City

Leelanau County

e Northport Village
Lenawee County

e Adrian City

« Blissfield Village
¢ Clinton Village

e Morenci City

e Tecumseh City



Michigan Department of Licensing and Regulatory Affairs
Liquor Control Commission (MLCC)
Toll-Free 866-813-0011 - www.michigan.gov/icc

Local Governmental Units That Have Established Social Districts Under MCL 436.1551

Updated July 25, 2025

Livingston County
e Brighton City

e Howell City

Mackinac County
« St. Ignace City

Macomb County
e Center Line City

Mt. Clemens City
New Baltimore City
Richmond City

St. Clair Shores City

Manistee County
e Manistee City

Marquette County
 Marquette City

¢ Negaunee City

Mason County
e Ludington City

e Scottville City

Mecosta County
* Big Rapids City

Midland County
e Midland City

Monroe County
e Dundee Village

* Monroe City

Montcalm County
e Greenville City

Muskegon County
¢ Montague City

e Muskegon City
e Whitehall City

Newaygo County
e Newaygo City

Page 2 of 3

Oakland County
Berkley City

Clarkston City
Clawson City
Farmington City
Ferndale City
Holly Village
Lake Orion Village
Milford Village
Novi City

Oak Park City
Oxford Village
Pontiac City
Royal Oak City
South Lyon City
Wixom City

Oceana County
e Hart City

Ogemaw County
* West Branch City

Osceola County
* Reed City

Otsego County
e Gaylord City

Ottawa County
Coopersville City

Grand Haven City
Holland City
Hudsonville City
Spring Lake Village
Zeeland City

Presque Isle County
e Rogers City

Roscommon County
¢ Roscommon Village

Saginaw County
» Frankenmuth City

e Merrill Village

Sanilac Count
¢ Lexington Village City

Schoolcraft Count
* Manistique City

Shiawassee Count
e Durand City

e Laingsburg City
¢ Owosso City

St. Clair County
e Marine City

e Port Huron City

St. Joseph County
¢ Sturgis City
¢ Three Rivers City

Van Buren County

e Decatur Village
« Lawton Village
e South Haven City

Washtenaw Coun
Ann Arbor City

Chelsea City
Dexter City
Manchester Village
Milan City

Saline City




Michigan Department of Licensing and Regulatory Affairs
Liquor Control Commission (MLCC)
Toll-Free 866-813-0011 » www.michigan.gov/lcc

Local Governmental Units That Have Established Social Districts Under MCL 436.1551

Updated July 25, 2025

Wayne County
Belleville City

Dearborn City

Grosse lle Township
Grosse Pointe City
Grosse Pointe Farms City
Grosse Pointe Park City
Grosse Pointe Woods City
Northville City

Trenton City

Wyandotte City

Wexford County
e Cadillac City

Page 3 of 3



CITY OF MONTROSE
MEMORANDUM

Date: August 3, 2025
To: Chairman Ray Foust and Planning Commission Members
From: Joe Karlichek, Interim City Managel@}

Subject: Consider Discussion of General Business License (GBL)

Background:

At the July 17, 2025, meeting of the (PC) Planning Commission, Vice Chairman Mr. Anthony Brown asked
that the General Business License (GBL) be brought back to the commission for discussion. At that meeting I
conveyed to Mr. Brown that the City Council, on July 24, 2025, had put in abeyance the GBL for an additional
90 days to permit the administration to conduct a review and investigation of what appears to be a contentious
item in the city and fraught with poor follow through. Placing an additional abeyance of the ordinance
essentially provides the potential opportunity for a recommendation to the city council at their September
council meeting. Memorandum to city council is attached to this memorandum for PC edification.

In addition, and for PC edification, the City Council, via meeting minutes of April 29, 2025,
“Discussion/Direction GBL Ordinance Corrections/Modifications unanimously voted to “halt” any
enforcement activities based on the current ordinance that we all agree needs to have something done to it,

for 90 days.”’.

After having conversations with various members of City Council, City Administration, including local
business, initial investigation revealed there are clear inconsistencies in the approach and handling of the GBL,
for quite some time. The city administration values the input of the PC and looks forward to receiving
articulated discussion in the hopes of coming to a consensus.

Attached with this memorandum are a number of documents outlining the history of the GBL.

Recommendation: It is recommended the PC discuss the GBL, its value, lack of value, change or not change of
the Ordinance so that city administration has clearer guidance and direction and be able to, with a degree of
evidence to inform the city council at their board meeting in September 2025 a clearer direction.



CITY OF MONTROSE
MEMORANDUM

Date: June 18, 2025
To: Mayor Banks and Montrose City Council Members
From: Joe Karlichek, Interim City Manager

Subject: Consider approval of extending the City of Montrose Business License additional 90 days pending
investigation review.

Background:

The City of Montrose, by way of Legislative action, approved a general business license (GBL) ordinance in
2017. (Ordinance Article III — General Business License is accompanied in this memorandum).

After having conversations with various members of City Council, City Administration, including local
business, initial investigation revealed there are clear inconsistencies in the approach to the GBL. In addition,
the City Council, via Draft meeting minutes of April 29, 2025, “Discussion/Direction GBL Ordinance
Corrections/Modifications unanimously voted to “halt” any enforcement activities based on the current
ordinance that we all agree needs to have something done to it, for 90 days.”. (Meeting minutes accompanies
this memorandum).

Recommendation: It is recommended the city council approve extending the delaying of any further action or
enforcement of the GBL pending administration’s review and investigation for a period of 90 days.
Administration to deliver a report to city council at their regularly scheduled council meeting Tuesday
Septemberl5, 2025.



PART Il - CODE OF ORDINANCES
Chapter 14 - BUSINESSES
ARTICLE Ill. GENERAL BUSINESS LICENSE

ARTICLE Ill. GENERAL BUSINESS LICENSE

Sec. 14-51. Purpose.

The purpose of this Ordinance is not to prohibit or unreasonably restrict businesses that operate within the City,
but instead, and subject to the requirements of this Ordinance, to license such businesses and monitor business
operations in the City so that the risks to the public health, safety and welfare are minimized. (Ord. No. 434, 7-27-
2017)

Sec. 14-52. License required.

All persons who conduct, engage in, maintain, operate, carry on, or manage a business for which a license is
not otherwise required under any other provisions of this Code shall be required to obtain a general business
license for said business. A separate license shall be required for each separate place of business. A business shall
include but not be limited to: for profit businesses and not for profit businesses.

Exceptions:

(1) Churches;

(2) Public libraries;

(3) Schools (public, parochial and charter, K-12);
(4) Government offices or operations.

(5) Any person exempt from the permitting requirements of this Article by virtue of state or federal law.

(Ord. No. 434, 7-27-2017)

Sec. 14-53. Application.

An application for a license required by this article shall be made in writing on a form prescribed by the city
clerk. Each application shall contain any information as may be required to determine whether a license should be
issued. The granting of a license under this Article to any person for a business that is composed of, or operated in
conjunction with, other trades, professions, businesses or privileges that also require other licenses or permits
under any City Ordinances shall not relieve the person to whom such license is granted under this Ordinance from
the necessity of securing any other licenses or permits for each such trade, profession, business or privilege
required to have such licenses or permits issued by any department or agency. Further, the fact that a license has
been granted to any person by any federal, state or county agency or authority to engage in the operation,
conduct, maintenance or management of any business or premises shall not exempt such person from the
necessity of procuring a license from the City if such license is required by this Article.

(Ord. No. 434, 7-27-2017)

Montrose, Michigan, Code of Ordinances Created: 2024-82-89 16:55:31 [EST]
{Supp. No. 6)

Page10f4



Sec. 14.54. Inspections

No license shall be issued unless and until the property where the business is located is reviewed or inspected by
appropriate City departments, in its discretion, including, without limitation, utilities, engineering, police and fire.
Similarly, no business license shall be renewed until and unless the property where the business is located is
reviewed or inspected by appropriate City departments, in its discretion. Each department required to review or
inspect the property must certify that the proposed use is not prohibited by any applicable City Ordinances, rules
or regulations including, without limitation, any zoning or fire regulations. If the proposed use is prohibited or
does not meet any requirement of the City Ordinances, a license shall not be issued or renewed and the applicant
shall be notified in writing by the City Clerk.

Sec. 14-55, Issuance of license.

The city clerk shall issue the license pursuant to the application if:

(1) The appropriate fees have been paid according to the table contained in this section.

(2)  The planning and development division has approved the use of said parcel for the requested use.
(3) There are no outstanding building code violations.

(4) There are no outstanding fire code violations and fire inspection is current/completed.

(5)  All current and past due fees and/or fines associated with the property or applicant have been paid or
arrangements have been made to pay, including but not limited to:

a.  Permit fees.

b.  Zoning fees.

C. Water or sewer services.

d.  Engineering fees.

e.  Falsealarm fees.

f. Property tax (real and personal).
g. Income tax.

(Ord. No. 434, 7-27-2017)

Sec. 14-56. Term of license, renewal.

All licenses provided in this article shall expire two years after the date of issuance. However, in the event of
a significant change in business operations (including a change of ownership, location, or product focus), the
license issued for that business shall immediately expire and terminate and a new license application shall be filed.
It shall be the responsibility of the business owner or manager to notify the City Clerk in writing of any such
significant change in business operations.

Unless otherwise provided in this Article, an application for renewal of a license shall be considered in the
same manner as an original application. At least thirty (30) days prior to expiration of any license, the licensee shall
apply for a renewal license on an application form approved by the City. Renewal applications shall, at a minimum,
require the applicant to confirm or update all of the information originally required under this Article. The City
Clerk may request from the applicant any additional information reasonably necessary to determine whether there

Created: 2024-82-89 15:55:31 [EST]
(Supp. No. 6)

Page 2 of 4



has been a significant change in business operations. City departments may, in their discretion, inspect or review
the property to confirm compliance with City Ordinances.

(Ord. No. 434, 7-27-2017)

Sec. 14-57. License fees.

Fees shall be established by from time to time by resolution of city council and listed in the general business
license registration application. License fees are non-refundable.

(Ord. No. 434, 7-27-2017)

Sec. 14-58. Late payment penalty.

An additional late charge in an amount established from time to time by resolution of City Council shall be
incurred as a result of the following:

(1)  Failure to obtain a business license within 90 days from the effective date of the ordinance or any
applicable amendment;

(2)  Failure to obtain a business license within 15 days from commencement of a business;
(3) Failure to renew a business license by the license expiration.

(Ord. No. 434, 7-27-2017)

Sec. 14-59. Regulations.

(a)  Nolicense shall be assigned, sold or transferred, nor shall any license authorize any person other than the
applicant to conduct business under such license without the express written approval of the City.

(b) The applicant or licensee shall have a duty to notify the city clerk of any changes in the information
contained in an application which is pending or which was the basis for the issuance of a license.

(c)  Alllicenses shall be prominently displayed on the business premises at all times.
(d) No person shall add to, alter, deface, forge, or counterfeit any license which is required under this article.

(e) Al licensees shall comply with all applicable state laws including Genesee County and local city ordinances.

(Ord. No. 434, 7-27-2017)

Sec. 14-60. Suspension, refusal and revocation.

In addition to any other penalty provided for in this Code or other city ordinances, the city clerk may refuse,
suspend or revoke any license issued pursuant to this section for:

(1)  Failure to comply with any provisions of this chapter and any applicable ordinances;
(2) Failure to allow required inspection.

(3) Fraud, misrepresentation, or false statement made in the application for a license or in the operation
of a business.

Created: 2024-82-89 16:55:31 [EST]

(Supp. No. 6)

Page 3 of 4



The city clerk shall notify the licensee that their license has been refused, suspended or revoked and the
reason for the refusal, suspension or revocation. Notification may be made by first class mail and shall state that
the licensee has the right to appeal the refusal, suspension or revocation provided the appeal is made in writing to
the city clerk within ten days of notification. Refusal, revocation or suspension of any license shall be effective
upon mailing to the last known address of the applicant or licensee, and no person shall operate any business at
any time without a valid license. Upon receipt of the written appeal the city clerk shall proceed with scheduling an
appeal hearing as provided for in the notice of hearings and hearings sections [§§ 14-60 and 14-61]. If a person
whose license has been refused, revoked or suspended fails to appeal, then the decision of the City Clerk shall be
final. If the application was refused, a person may reapply in the same manner for an original license, including
payment of the required fees, at any time. If a license is suspended, the license shall be inactive and shall be
ineffective during the period of suspension, after which the license shall return to active and effective status until
expiration. If a license is revoked, the license shall be deemed to be fully and completely revoked for a period of
one (1) year after such revocation after which a person may reapply in the same manner for an original license.

(Ord. No. 434, 7-27-2017)

Sec. 14-61. Notice of hearing.

Notice of the above-described hearing shall be served on the licensee by first class mail and posting at the
location of the licensed business not less than five days before the date of said hearing.

(Ord. No. 434, 7-27-2017)

Sec. 14-62. Hearings.

The hearing shall be conducted by the building, code, or health inspector based upon the offense cited and
or governing body in affording the licensee an opportunity to appear and defend the charges. A final decision in
writing, including the reasons for such decision and shall serve said decision on the licensee within ten days after
conclusion of the hearing.

(Ord. No. 434, 7-27-2017)

Sec. 14-63. Penalties and remedies.

A person who violates a provision of this article is responsible for a municipal civil infraction. In addition to the
remedies and penalties otherwise provided in this article, the city may seek temporary and permanent equitable
relief to abate and enjoin violations of this article and shall have all other remedies provided by law or equity.

(Ord. No. 434, 7-27-2017)

Secs. 14-64—14-90. Reserved.

88133:00002:200469827-1

Created: 2024-92-29 16:55:31 [EST]

(Supp. No. 6)

Page 4 of 4



General Business License

Registration Application

OFFICES
Est. 1899

Business Name:

Business owner Phone #

Physical Address:

Additional Information:

Mailing Address (if different than physical address):

Type of Business:

City:
State: Zip:
Email Address: D
Corporation D Partnership D Sole Proprietor D Non-Profit D Sign: DYes EI No # of stories:
Federal Tax ID #:
# of Employees: # of Handicap Parking Spaces:

Business Owner Name:

Building Owner Information

(If different from business owner)

Name:

Address:

City:

State:

Home Phone:

Business Phone:

Cellular Phone:

Email Address:

Ordinance 434 Regulations:

(1) No license shall be assigned, sold or transferred,
nor shall any license authorize any person other
than the applicant to conduct business under such
license.

(2) The applicant or licensee shall have a duty to
notify the City Clerk of any changes in the
information contained in an application which is
pending or which is the basis for issuance of a
license.

(3) All licenses shall be prominently displayed on the
business premises at all times.

(4) No person shall add to, alter, deface, forge, or
counterfeit any license which has been issued by
the City.

(5) All licensees shall comply with all applicable City and
State Laws.

Signature & Date:

the information contained on this application is true.

By signing this application, | hereby swear or affirm that | am the Owner/Agent/Operator of the above property and that

Fees: Registration and Inspection Fee is $150.00 per business. Fees not paid within 15 days after commencement of
business will be subject to a 50% fine of the business license. This license does not apply to home based businesses.

*$60 Re-inspection fee Failure to renew after expiration/15 days after opening/not obtaining: $225

OFFICE USE
ONLY

Date Application Received:
Date & Amount Paid:
Check No. CC Payment or Cash:

Please make ¢
Mail completed application and payment to:
Review Checklist-address any issues
Schedule an inspection (810) 639-6168 ext. 6

Or email: permits@cityofmontrose.us

e o=

Complete a seﬂarate form for each business to be registered.
ecks payable to: City of Montrose

City of Montrose
Attn: General Business License
9 S. Saginaw St.

Montrose, Ml 48457




City of Montrose - General Code Compliance In:
Exterior

Name of business shall be provided on the front of the building or on a sign
Address shall be posted on the front of the building. Numbers shall be at least 4” in height, v
No combustible storage within 15 feet of a building

Dumpsters shall be kept in approved enclosures

No abandoned or unlicensed vehicles

Posted fire lanes must always be kept clear

ADA parking provided and posted

No sheds, containers, storage or temporary structures

Fences are in good condition

Parking, walkway, alley is properly lit

Exterior is in a “maintained” condition.

Lawn is mowed, trees and bushes trimmed, leaves cleaned up/snow is removed
No loose garbage

No harborage of pests

No chipped or peeling paint

No broken glass

Interior

Occupant load posted

Doors and exits are not blocked and do not require a key for exiting

Fire extinguishers shall be provided at each exit and 75 feet in between extinguishers (maxin
extinguisher size and type is determined by occupancy type and building code

Fire extinguishers shall be installed 42 inches from finished floor to hanger

Fire suppression systems shall be inspected and tested annually by a certified contractor
Fire alarm systems shall be inspected and tested annually by a certified contractor

Storage height is limited to 12 feet if the building does not have a fire suppression system
Emergency lighting is required along the entire path of egress. A photometric plan may be re
Exit lighting shall always be illuminated with a back-up system

Extension cords may not take the place of fixed wiring. Extension cords are intended for tem
Compressed gas cylinders shall always be secured

Supply and drain plumbing shall have proper air gap, backflow or other sanitary protection ¢
Stairs, rail, and guard rails are code compliant

ADA compliant restroom(s)




General Business License

Registration Application

DFFIGCEDS
Est. 1899

Business Name:

Physical Address:

Additional Information:

Mailing Address (if different than physical address):

Type of Business:

City:

Does the business have an encroachment? El Yes D No
State; Zip: (Awning, sprinkler system, window well, etc.)
Email Address:

AlarmDYes D No

Corporation D Par(nershD DA D Sole PropD:rD Non

Sign: DYes D No

# of stories:

Federal Tax ID #:

# of Employees: # of Handicap Parking Spaces:

Business Owner Name:

Building Owner Information

Name:

Address:

City:

State:

Home Phone:

Business Phone:

Cellular Phone:

Email Address:

Ordinance 434 Regulations:

(1) No license shall be assigned, sold or transferred,
nor shall any license authorize any person other
than the applicant to conduct business under such
license.

(2) The applicant or licensee shall have a duty to
notify the City Clerk of any changes in the
information contained in an application which is
pending or which is the basis for issuance of a
license. o

(3) All licenses shall be prominently displayed on the
business premises at all times. -

(4) No person shall add to, alter, deface, forge, or
counterfeit any license which has been issued by

the City.
(5) All licensees shall comply with all applicable City and

State Laws.

Signature & Date:

the information contained on this application is true.

*$60 Re-inspection fee

By signing this application, | hereby swear or affirm that | am the Owner/Agent/Operator of the above property and that

Fees: Registration and Inspection Fee is $150.00 per business. Fees not paid within 15 days after commencement of
business will be subject to a 50% fine of the business license. This license does not apply to home based businesses.

OFFICE USE
ONLY

Date Application Received:
Date & Amount Paid:
Check No. CC Payment or Cash:

Please make checks payable to: City of Montrose

Mail completed application and payment to:
Review Checklist-address any issues
Schedule an inspection (810) 639-6168 ext. 6

Or email: permits@cityofmontrose.us

Chife (0 B

Complete a se[ﬁarate form for each business to be registered.

City of Montrose

Attn: General Business License

139 S. Saginaw St.
Montrose, Ml 48457




ARTICLE Ill. - GENERAL BUSINESS LICENSE

Sec. 14-51. - Purpose.

The purpose of this section shall be to generate general fund revenue to offset the cost of enforcing existing city ordinances and regulate
business activity as it relates to zoning, permits, income tax, property tax and the like.

(Ord. No. 434, 7-27-2017)

Sec. 14-52. - License required.

All persons who conduct, engage in, maintain, operate, carry on, or manage a business for which a license is not otherwise required under
any other provisions of this Code shall be required to obtain a general business license for said business. A separate license shall be required for

each separate place of business. A business shall include but not be limited to: for profit businesses and not for profit businesses.
Exceptions:
(1) Churches;
(2) Public libraries;
(3) Schools (public, UmSn:.m__ and charter, K-12);

(4) Government offices or operations.

(Ord. No. 434, 7-27-2017)

Sec. 14-53. - Application.

An application for a license required by this article shall be made in writing on a form prescribed by the city clerk. Each application shall
contain any information as may be required to determine whether a license should be issued.

(Ord. No. 434, 7-27-2017)

Sec. 14-54. - Issuance of license.



Sec. 14-57. - Late payment penalty.

An additional late charge of 50 percent of the license shall be incurred as a result of the following:

(1) Failure to obtain a business license within 90 days from the effective date of the ordinance or any applicable amendment;
(2) Failure to obtain a business license within 15 days from commencement of a business:
(3) Failure to renew a business license by the license expiration.

(Ord. No. 434, 7-27-2017)

Sec. 14-58. - Regulations.

(a) No license shall be assigned, sold or transferred, nor shall any license authorize any person other than the applicant to conduct
business under such license.

(b) The applicant or licensee shall have a duty to notify the city clerk of any changes in the information contained in an application which
is pending or which was the basis for the issuance of a license.

() Alllicenses shall be prominently displayed on the business premises at all times.
(d) No person shall add to, alter, deface, forge, or counterfeit any license which is required under this article.

(e) Alllicensees shall comply with all applicable state laws including Genesee County and local city ordinances.

(Ord. No. 434, 7-27-2017)

Sec. 14-59. - Suspension and revocation.

In addition to any other penalty provided for in this Code or other City ordinances, the city clerk may suspend or revoke any license issued
pursuant to this section for:

(1) Failure to comply with any provisions of this chapter and any applicable ordinances:

(2) Failure to allow required inspection. The city clerk shall notify the licensee that their license has been suspended or revoked and
the reason for the suspension or revocation. Notification may be made by first class mail and shall state that the licensee has the

right to appeal the suspension or revocation provided the appeal is made in writing to the city clerk within ten days of notification.



In addition to any other penalty or remedy provided for in this Code, or other city ordinances, the city clerk shall have the authority to take
the following actions against any business which fails to obtain or renew a business license:

(1) A separate offense shall be deemed committed for each day that a violation occurs.

(2) Use whatever means necessary to cause said business to cease operations at its location, including, but not limited to, having

persons vacate the premises, padlocking said premises or terminating water service to said premises, with reasonable costs
charged to the business owner.

(Ord. No. 434, 7-27-2017)

Secs. 14-64—14-90. - Reserved.



MONTROSE CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
April 29, 2025

Aye, Machuk —Aye, Pangle —Aye, Heslop —Aye, Hoose —Aye, and Mayor Banks — Aye.
All Ayes. Motion Carried.

10. DISCUSSION/DIRECTION GBL ORDINANCE CORRECTIONS/MODIFICATONS:
A °® MOTION by Pangle SECOND by Mayor Pro-Tem Richard to direct the City Manager to halt
Lﬂ any enforcement activities based on the current ordinance that we all agree needs to
7 have something done to it, for 90 days. Roll Call Vote: Mayor Pro-Tem Richard — Aye,
Pangle — Aye, Hoose — Aye, Heslop — Aye, Machuk — Aye, and Mayor Banks — Aye. All
Ayes. Motion Carried.

c,:sj

11. DISCUSSION/DIRECTION OF USDA GRADUATION LETTER:
e MOTION by Mayor Pro-Tem Richard SECOND by Pa
$10,000.00. Roll Call Vote: Heslop —Aye, Mach

Pangle — Aye, Hoose — Nay, and Mayor Banks

hire Miller Canfield at a cap of
yor Pro-Tem Richard — Aye,

Carried.
e MOTION by Pangle SECOND by Machuk t i an engagement
letter with Doug Deeter at Rehman Grou iti oll Call Vote:

em Richard — Aye, Machuk —Aye,
otion Carried

Pangle — Aye, Hoose —Nay, He

ange the City Office hours to
and revisit in September. All Ayes.

COUNTY SMALL CITIES AND VILLAGES

Richard ND by Pangle for the Genesee County Small
eeting at the Depot on May 7t at 6pm. Roll Call Vote:
r Pro-Tem Richard — Aye, Machuk —No, Pangle — Aye,

ABSENCES AT THE 02 TY COUNCIL MEETING
e MOTION by Pangle’ SECOND by Heslop that we approve the absences of Hoose and
Richard. All Ayes. Motion Carried.

REPORTS FROM BOARDS & COMMISSIONS:

DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY BOARD: Machuck. Discussed the direction of the DDA
meetings going to evenings at 7pm and twice month. Made a budget for the flowers for uptown.
Forming a Garden Club and starting up the community garden. Next meeting is April 16'" at 7pm.

ELECTION COMMISSION: Rush reported that absentee ballots have come in and will be available
once the election machines are tested.

Page 3 of 4



MONTROSE CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
April 29, 2025

GENESEE COUNTY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT ALLOCA TION COMMITTEE: NONE.
GENESEE COUNTY METROPOLITAN ALLIANCE: Report on file at the city office.

GENESEE COUNTY SMALL CITIES & VILLAGES ASSOCIATION: Mayor Banks recommended Irene’s
Restaurant in Grand Blanc.

GENESEE COUNTY WATER AND WASTE SERVICE’S ADVISORY COMMITTEE: NONE.

PLANNING BOARD: Everything discussed during tonight’s meeti

911 CONSORTIUM: Pangle reported there is more progr w 911 building.

ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS: Valentine mentione ual appointments and
there could be a possible fence variance for a lo

MONTROSE AREA CHAMBER OF COMMERCE: Ho i er would like
Lori and Tom to volunteer go into the dunk tank.

2. RRC TRAINING
Valentine reported th

REPORTS FROU!

the city.

ENTS: Mayor and Council made comments.

MAYOR AND COUNCIL

COMMUNICATIONS TO THE COUNCIL: On file at city office.

ADJOURNMENT:
MOTION by Richard SECOND Heslop by to adjourn. All Ayes. Motion Carried.

Mayor Banks adjourned the meeting at 10:12 p.m.
Prepared by City Secretary, Christine Schultz

Page 4 of 4



MONTROSE CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
April 29, 2025

CALL TO ORDER: Mayor Tom Banks called the regular Council meeting to order at 7:01 p.m. The
meeting was held at the City Offices located at 139 S. Saginaw Street, Montrose, M.

ROLL CALL: Present council members were Mayor Tom Banks, Mayor Pro-Tem Mark Richard,
Ryan Heslop, Todd Pangle, Lori Machuk, and Melissa Wallace-Hoose. Also present was City
Manager Barbara Valentine, City Clerk Tina Rush, and 16 citizens. Council member Robert Arnold

was recorded absent.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG: Mayor Tom Banks led The Pledge of Allegiance.

CITIZEN OF THE MONTH:
1. THE MONTH OF MARCH 2025; AARON BURCH: Council h

the community on city council.

d Burch for his years of serving

PUBLIC HEARINGS: NONE

PRESENTATIONS:
1. REVIZE WEBSITE DEMONSTRATION: Revise repre Ml addressed
the council on a potential new website desi i online and mobile website would

2. REVITALIZE AND TRITERRA — 106 W S ? - Revitalize, LLC project liaison
Ron Drzewicki, addressed the council regard 1= place at 106 W. State Street
owned by Ramby, LLC. R ' mby, LLC. (Eric Reed) to stand up
and speak for a few g Ramby, LLC acquiring the building in 2019 up
gressing through the MEDC. This is a $2.2 million

Seago addressed the C garding a new three-year contract with the city.

REPORTS
1. FIRE & POLICE DEPARTMENT REPORTS: Report on file at the city office.

2. BUILDING INSPECTION SERVICES REPORT: Invoice on file at the city office.

PUBLIC COMMENTS: Resident Clint Diffin spoke on potential flooding issues on Coke Drive.

MATTERS OF COUNCIL ACTION:
1. APPROVAL OF THE 02/11/25 SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES:

Page 1 of 4



MONTROSE CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
April 29, 2025

e MOTION by Richard SECOND by Pangle to approve the February 11, 2025, special meeting
minutes. All Ayes. Motion Carried.

2. APPROVAL OF THE 02/25/25 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES:
e MOTION by Pangle SECOND by Hoose that we approve the February 25, 2025, meeting
minutes. All Ayes. Motion Carried.

3. APPROVAL OF CHECK REGISTER & TREASURER REPORT:
e MOTION by Pangle SECOND by Mayor Pro-Tem Richard that we approve the check
register and treasurer report as presented. Roll Call Vote: sRangle — Aye, Machuk — Aye,
Hoose — Aye, Mayor Pro-Tem Richard — Aye, Heslop — and Mayor Banks — Aye. All

Ayes. Motion Carried.

4. DISCUSSION/DIRECTION OF TRANSITION TO THE R

approving this service charge would

e MOTION by Mayor Pro-Tem Ric [
seventeen hundred. de : - all Vote: Heslop — Aye, Machuk —

hould they not provide the required information.
eslop — Aye, Machuk — Aye, Mayor Pro-Tem Richard —

8. DISCUSSION/DIRECTION MOSQUITO ABATEMENT BID AWARD: Only one bid was submitted.
e MOTION by Machuk SECOND by Mayor Pro-Tem Richard that we move forward with APM
for mosquito abatement. Roll Call Vote: Hoose — Aye, Machuk — Aye, Heslop — Aye,
Mayor Pro-Tem Richard — Aye, Pangle — Aye, and Mayor Banks — Aye. All Ayes. Motion

Carried.

9. DISCUSSION/DIRECTION CITY ATTORNEY ENGAGEMENT AGREEMENT:
e MOTION by Mayor Pro-Tem Richard SECOND by Hoose that we move with the
engagement agreement with Foster & Swift. Roll Call Vote: Mayor Pro-Tem Richard —

Page 2 of 4



7/2/25, 8:40 AM General business license to be revised with new manager's help - Tri-County Citizen

General business license to be
revised with new manager’s help

MARCH o1, 2025

BY JEANNE MARCELLO
STAFF REPORTER

CITY OF MONTROSE - During its Tuesday, Feb. 25 meeting, the Montrose
City Council discussed problems with portions of the city’s General Business
License ordinance. The ordinance and its enforcement have been thorns to

several Montrose city businesses.

The Montrose City Council adopted its general business license ordinance in
response to the fire in downtown Montrose on June 28, 2011. At the time, the
city didn’t have contact information for the business owners, which became an
issue as fire officials needed access to adjacent buildings to extinguish the fire.

The city council asked the planning commission to prepare an ordinance that
addressed the need for contact information, as well as providing information
about any hazardous chemicals or materials in the building. A sample
ordinance was located and modified for the city.

As basic fire inspections were required, the general business license became
tied to building inspections, which were handled by city code enforcement
officer Matt Leoni.

Businesses repeatedly complained about the difficulty in obtaining their
business licenses and the mounting costs of inspections.

v

IF YOU KNOW TV,

* YouTubeTV YOU HAVE YOUTUBE

Join millions of TV lovers and get 100+ live channels with Yo

https://tricountycitizen.mihomepaper.com/articles/general-business-license-to-be-revised-with-new-managers-help/ 1/5



712125, 8:40 AM General business license to be revised with new manager's help - Tri-County Citizen

general business license ordinance and particularly the enforcement of certain
aspects of it.

Councilwoman Lori Machuk explained that when she and her husband, Dan,
opened their business about six years ago, the business licenses hadn’t been
enforced. After COVID, the enforcement kicked in and the Machuks tried to

comply.

The Machuks attended a planning commission meeting and talked with other
business owners. “We’ve seen what’s happened, all the red tape, businesses
just run (from Montrose). I'm not opposed to something (feewise) but I think
the business license ordinance needs to start over,” Dan Machuk said.

Warren Edwards, who owns some business buildings in downtown Montrose,
said, “I recommend we rescind the whole thing. There’s no reason to continue
this ordinance if all it’s going to do is kill businesses.”

Dan Machuk explained that the building inspector/code enforcement officer
was in the building for a maximum of five minutes and that cost him $150.
“We got bullied by Matt and I got billed four times. You paid $150 or they
closed you down. I know businesses that never paid $150. This ordinance is
not working.”

Valentine had already reviewed the ordinance and cited a couple of problems

she saw with it.

“You can’t have an ordinance with questionable legal language causing a
business to cease and desist. This is an administrative ordinance by definition,
it states the ordinance falls under the clerk,” she said. Valentine explained that
this is an administrative ordinance, not a policing ordinance.

Council members talked about sending the ordinance back to the planning

https://tricountycitizen.mihomepaper.com/articles/general-business-license-to-be-revised-with-new-managers-help/



7/2/25, 8:40 AM General business license to be revised with new manager's help - Tri-County Citizen

Councilman Todd Pangle suggested the new city manager (Valentine) get with
the planning commission and work on presenting an alternate to rescinding
the general business license entirely.

Valentine said, “I'd suggest (we) stop trying to police businesses. Create an
ordinance that is beneficial to businesses and the community. It should be
handled administratively.”

She explained that there are two conflicting aspects of the business license
ordinance as it is written. On the one hand it’s an administrative license to
provide emergency personnel with important information about the building.
On the other hand, it’s a policing ordinance, but it’s unenforceable.

According to the ordinance, “A hearing shall be conducted by the building
code or health inspector, based upon the offense cited and or governing body
in affording the licensee an opportunity to appear and defend the charges.”
This means that the department head issuing the citation also controls the
appeal, Valentine explained.

However, businesses contend there was no appeal available to them.

Under penalties and remedies, the ordinance states that the city clerk had the
authority to take action against any business which fails to obtain or renew a
business license. Furthermore, it states that the city “use whatever means
necessary to cause said business to cease operations at its location, including
but not limited to having persons vacate the premises, padlocking said
premises or terminating water service to said premises, with reasonable costs
charged to the business owner,” which is not enforceable under state law.

And yet, there were several businesses that were attempting to obtain business

licenses but were being blocked.
"4

https://tricountycitizen.mihomepaper.com/articles/general-business-license-to-be-revised-with-new-managers-help/ 3/5



7/2125, 8:40 AM General business license to be revised with new manager's help - Tri-County Citizen

Councilman Pangle found this acceptable.
Councilman Arnold said, “This was supposed to be a safety ordinance.”

Dan Machuk told the council that nine or more businesses already left the city

because of this ordinance.

Valentine told the council, “There are other ways to help businesses. I agree
there needs to be engineering done on these buildings; but that doesn’t have to
happen through this ordinance. I'd suggest (we) stop trying to police
businesses and create an ordinance that is beneficial to businesses and the
community. It should be handled administratively.”

The council agreed.

https://tricountycitizen.mihomepaper.com/articles/general-business-license-to-be-revised-with-new-managers-help/ 4/5



7/2/25, 8:40 AM General business license to be revised with new manager's help - Tri-County Citizen

Related Stories by Tri-County Citizen

Tri-County Citizen  Tri-County Citizen

City council explores = NEWS BRIEFS
DDA proposal

Montrose Blueberry
CITY OF MONTROSE —  Festival date set for
During the Tuesday, Aug. 11-17 During its

April 22 meeting of the ~ Tuesday, Feb. 25
Montrose City Council,  meeting, the Montrose

Go To The Front Page Section

Tri-County Citizen

Montrose City
Council hires office
staff and services

MONTROSE — During
its Tuesday, June 24
meeting, the Montrose

Steve Rutkowski of City Council approved City Council approved
Spicer Group... the... the hiring of new staff
members and...
N

hitps://tricountycitizen.mihomepaper.com/articles/general-business-license-to-be-revised-with-new-managers-help/

5/5



712125, 8:45 AM Montrose, Ml Code of Ordinances

Sec. 14-51. - Purpose.

The purpose of this section shall be to generate general fund revenue to offset the cost of enforcing
existing city ordinances and regulate business activity as it relates to zoning, permits, income tax, property

tax and the like.

(Ord. No. 434, 7-27-2017)

Sec. 14-52. - License required.

All persons who conduct, engage in, maintain, operate, carry on, or manage a business for which a
license is not otherwise required under any other provisions of this Code shall be required to obtain a
general business license for said business. A separate license shall be required for each separate place of

business. A business shall include but not be limited to: for profit businesses and not for profit businesses.
Exceptions:

(1) Churches;

(2) Public libraries;

(3) Schools (public, parochial and charter, K-12);
(4) Government offices or operations.

(Ord. No. 434, 7-27-2017)

Sec. 14-53. - Application.

An application for a license required by this article shall be made in writing on a form prescribed by the
city clerk. Each application shall contain any information as may be required to determine whether a license

should be issued.

(Ord. No. 434, 7-27-2017)

Sec. 14-54. - Issuance of license.

The city clerk shall issue the license pursuant to the application if:

(1) The appropriate fees have been paid according to the table contained in this section.

(2) The planning and development division has approved the use of said parcel for the requested
use.

(3) There are no outstanding building code violations.

(4) There are no outstanding fire code violations and fire inspection is current/completed.

(5)

about:blank 1/4



712125, 8:45 AM Montrose, Ml Code of Ordinances
All current and past due fees and/or fines associated with the property or applicant have been paid or

arrangements have been made to pay, including but not limited to:
a. Permit fees.
b. Zoning fees.
c. Water or sewer services.
d. Engineering fees.
e. False alarm fees.
f. Property tax (real and personal).
g. Income tax.

(Ord. No. 434, 7-27-2017)
Sec. 14-55. - Term of license, renewal.
All licenses provided in this article shall expire two years after the date of issuance.

(Ord. No. 434, 7-27-2017)

Sec. 14-56. - License fees.

Fees shall be established by city council and listed in the general business license registration application.

(Ord. No. 434, 7-27-2017)

Sec. 14-57. - Late payment penalty.
An additional late charge of 50 percent of the license shall be incurred as a result of the following:

(1) Failure to obtain a business license within 90 days from the effective date of the ordinance or
any applicable amendment;
(2) Failure to obtain a business license within 15 days from commencement of a business;

(3) Failure to renew a business license by the license expiration.

(Ord. No. 434, 7-27-2017)

Sec. 14-58. - Regulations.

(a) No license shall be assigned, sold or transferred, nor shall any license authorize any person other

than the applicant to conduct business under such license.

(b) The applicant or licensee shall have a duty to notify the city clerk of any changes in the

information contained in an application which is pending or which was the basis for the issuance

of a license.

about:blank

2/4



7/2/25, 8:45 AM Montrose, Ml Code of Ordinances
(c) All licenses shall be prominently displayed on the business premises at all times.
(d) No person shall add to, alter, deface, forge, or counterfeit any license which is required under this
article.
(e) All licensees shall comply with all applicable state laws including Genesee County and local city

ordinances.

(Ord. No. 434, 7-27-2017)
Sec. 14-59. - Suspension and revocation.

In addition to any other penalty provided for in this Code or other city ordinances, the city clerk may

suspend or revoke any license issued pursuant to this section for:

(1) Failure to comply with any provisions of this chapter and any applicable ordinances;

(2) Failure to allow required inspection. The city clerk shall notify the licensee that their license
has been suspended or revoked and the reason for the suspension or revocation. Notification
may be made by first class mail and shall state that the licensee has the right to appeal the
suspension or revocation provided the appeal is made in writing to the city clerk within ten
days of notification. Upon receipt of the written appeal the city clerk shall proceed with
scheduling an appeal hearing as provided for in the notice of hearings and hearings sections
[§§_14-60 and_14-61].

(Ord. No. 434, 7-27-2017)

Sec. 14-60. - Notice of hearing.

Notice of the above-described hearing shall be served on the licensee by first class mail and posting at

the location of the licensed business not less than five days before the date of said hearing.

(Ord. No. 434, 7-27-2017)

Sec. 14-61. - Hearings.

The hearing shall be conducted by the building, code, or health inspector based upon the offense cited
and or governing body in affording the licensee an opportunity to appear and defend the charges. A final

decision in writing, including the reasons for such decision and shall serve said decision on the licensee

within ten days after conclusion of the hearing.

(Ord. No. 434, 7-27-2017)

Sec. 14-62. - Summary suspension.

about:blank 3/4



7/2/25, 8:45 AM Montrose, Ml Code of Ordinances

Whenever there is sufficient evidence demonstrating probable cause to believe that the licensee has
violated the provisions of this article or has not complied with state law, Genesee County or local city
ordinances and that said violation will immediately threaten the public health, safety or welfare, the city
manager may, upon the issuance of a written order stating the reason for such conclusion and without prior
notice or hearing, order the licensed premises closed and the license summarily suspended pending a
public hearing and determination on suspension or revocation. Said hearing shall be commenced not more
than 17 days following entry of such an order, unless the licensee shall agree to a longer period of time.
Upon entry of an order of summary suspension, the licensee shall be served with a copy of the order and

notice of violation and hearing in the manner provided in this section.

(Ord. No. 434, 7-27-2017)

Sec. 14-63. - Penalties and remedies.

In addition to any other penalty or remedy provided for in this Code, or other city ordinances, the city
clerk shall have the authority to take the following actions against any business which fails to obtain or

renew a business license:

(1) Aseparate offense shall be deemed committed for each day that a violation occurs.

(2) Use whatever means necessary to cause said business to cease operations at its location,
including, but not limited to, having persons vacate the premises, padlocking said premises or

terminating water service to said premises, with reasonable costs charged to the business

owner.

(Ord. No. 434, 7-27-2017)

Secs. 14-64—14-90. - Reserved.

about:blank 4/4



City of Montrose - General Code Compliance In:
Exterior

Name of business shall be provided on the front of the building or on a sign
Address shall be posted on the front of the building. Numbers shall be at least 4” in height, v
No combustible storage within 15 feet of a building

Dumpsters shall be kept in approved enclosures

No abandoned or unlicensed vehicles

Posted fire lanes must always be kept clear

ADA parking provided and posted

No sheds, containers, storage or temporary structures

Fences are in good condition

Parking, walkway, alley is properly lit

Exterior is in a “maintained” condition.

Lawn is mowed, trees and bushes trimmed, leaves cleaned up/snow is removed
No loose garbage

No harborage of pests

No chipped or peeling paint

No broken glass

Interior

Occupant load posted

Doors and exits are not blocked and do not require a key for exiting

Fire extinguishers shall be provided at each exit and 75 feet in between extinguishers (maxin
extinguisher size and type is determined by occupancy type and building code

Fire extinguishers shall be installed 42 inches from finished floor to hanger

Fire suppression systems shall be inspected and tested annually by a certified contractor
Fire alarm systems shall be inspected and tested annually by a certified contractor

Storage height is limited to 12 feet if the building does not have a fire suppression system
Emergency lighting is required along the entire path of egress. A photometric plan may be re
Exit lighting shall always be illuminated with a back-up system

Extension cords may not take the place of fixed wiring. Extension cords are intended for tem
Compressed gas cylinders shall always be secured

Supply and drain plumbing shall have proper air gap, backflow or other sanitary protection c
Stairs, rail, and guard rails are code compliant

ADA compliant restroom(s)




139 S, SAGINAW STREET PHONE (810) 639-6168

MONTROSE, MI 48457 FAX (810) 639-6125

OFFICES

sl 1899

Planning Board Regular Meeting

September 12, 2024
To be held at the Montrose City Office
Located at 139 S. Saginaw Street
7:00 p.m.
CALL TO ORDER

ROLL CALL
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG

APPROVAL OF MINUTES
1. 8/8/24 — Planning Board Meeting Minutes

CITIZEN COMMENT ON AGENDA ITEMS
COMMUNICATIONS

PUBLIC HEARING

City of Montrose Master Plan 2040
UNFINISHED BUSINESS:

1. General Business License Draft Ordinance/Process ..
NEW BUSINESS

1. Master Plan Resolution of Support
2. Call for Project Genesee County Metro Planning

STAFF REPORTS: NONE
EXTENDED CITIZEN COMMENTS

EXTENDED MEMBER COMMENTS
ADJOURNMENT

In accordance with Federal law and US Department of Agriculture policy, this institution is prohibited from
discriminating on the basis of race, color, national origin, sex, age, religion, disability, political beliefs, or
disability. (Not all prohibited bases apply to all programs). Hearing or speech impaired services available by
dialing 711.To file a complaint of discrimination, write to: USDA, Director, Office of Civil Rights, 1400
Independence Avenue, S.W., Washington, D.C. 20250-94 10 or call (800) 795-3272 (voice) or (202) 720-
5694 (TDD).



